
XcoN[p.BfrA
Here for you.

October 14,2013

Ms. Marlene H. Dortch

Secretary

Federal Communications Commission
445 lzth Street, S.W.

Washington,DC 20554

In the Matter of Connect America Fund, A National Broadband Planfor Our Future,
Establishing Just and Reasonable Rates for Locul Exchange Carriers, High-Cost Universal
Service Support, Developing a Unified Intercarrier Compensation Regime, Federal-State Joint
Board on Universal Service, Lifeline and Link-Up, Universal Service Reform - Mobili4t Fund,
WC Docket Nos. 10-90,07-135, 05-337,03-109, CC Docket Nos. 01-92, 96-45, GN Docket
No. 09-51, WT Docket No. 10-208

Dear Ms. Dortch:

On behalf of City of Faith Municipal Telephone Company ("City of Faith"), please find enclosed one

copy of FCC Form 481, containing Confidential Financial Information and two copies of City of Faith's
FCC Form 481, containing Confidential Financial Information in redacted form.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (402) 441-431 5 if you have any questions regarding this
submission.

Respectfully submitted,

f{.a, q1i]opi+u r*,r* 0 +l
List ABCDF

DOCIGT FILE COPY ORIGII{AL

Received & tnsPected

ocT 24 2013

FCC Mail Room

Re:

Consortia Consulting, Inc.

ttA consortiaconsulting. com



XcoNtggrA
Here for you. Recetved & lnspected

REDACTED _ FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION ocT 24 ?013

FCC Mait Room

October 14,2013

Ms. Marlene H. Dortch

Secretary

Federal Communications Commission
445 lzth Street, S.W.

Washington,DC 20554

Re: In the Matter of Connect America Fund, A National Broadband Plan.for Our Future,
Establishing Just and Reasonable Rates for Local Exchange Carriers, High-Cost Universal
Service Support, Developing a Unilied Intercaruier Compensation Regime, Federal-Statu foint
Board on Universal Service, Lifeline and Link-Up, Universal Service Reform - Mobility Fund,
WC Docket Nos. 10-90,07-135,05-337,03-109, CC Docket Nos. 01-92, 96-45, GN Docket

. No. 09-51, WT Docket No. 10-208

Dear Ms. Dortch:

On behalf of City of Faith Municipal Telephone Company ("City of Faith"), please find enclosed two
copies of City of Faith's FCC Form 48 1, along with the redacted versions of the Confidential Financial
Information

One copy of the FCC Form 481, containing Confidential Financial Information is being filed under

separate cover.

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (402) 441-4315 if you have any questions regarding this
submission.

Respectfully submitted,

t7
/\

Consortia Consulting, Inc.

consortiaconsulting. com



Received &
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391553<010> Study Area Code

CITY OP FAITH MIC<015> Study Area Name

<020> Program Year

<030> Contact Name: Person USAC should contact
with questions about this data

Judy Christiansen

<035> Contact Telephone Number:
Number ot the person identified in data line <030>

402-398 -O052

<039> Contact Email Address:
Email oi the person identified in data line <030>

j chri.sEiansenoconsortlaconsul ting. com

<100>

<200>

<210>

<4LO>

<420>

<300> Unfulfilled Service Requests (voice)

<310> Detail on Attempts (voice)

<320> Unfulfilled Service Requests (broadband)
<330> Detail on Attempts (broadband)

<400> Number of Complaints per 1,000 customers (voice)

Service Quality lmprovement Reporting

Outage Reporting (voice)

Fixed

Mobile

(complete ottoched wo*sheet)

(complete ottoched wotksheet)

(check box when complete)r===-ffiffi
l_J_Jl___ !_ )

ll /Il7ll

ll-Iffi

f]Eil.-.heck box if no outages to report

0

(oth ch de scriptive do.ument)

( otto ch d escilptive d oc ument)

(check to indicote certifrcotion)

( otto ch ed d escriptive document)

(check to indicqte cenifrcotion)

lottoched deictiptiv. document)

( compl ete ofr o ch ed w orksheet)

( com pl ete afr o ch ed wo* sh eet)

( c ofr ple te afro.h ed wo tk sh eet)

(il y6, cofr plete oftoched wo.ksheet)

(ch.ck to indicote cettiication)

( o tto ch d esui ptive d ocum ent)

(ifnot, check to indicote certifcotion)

( compl ete o ft o c h e d wotksheet)

( cofr pl ete o ft o ch e d wo* sheetl

<430> Number of Complaints per 1,000 customers (broadband)

<450> Mobile

<500> Service Quality Standards & Consumer Protection Rules Compliance
<510> 3916s3sd510
<600> Functionality in Emergency Situations
<610> 3916s3sd510

<700> Company Price Offerings (voice)

<710> Company Price Offerings (broadband)
<800> Operating Companies and Affiliates . 

^<900> Tribal Land Offerings (Y/N)? (. (!,
<1000> Voice Services Rate Comparability
<1010>

<1100> Terrestrial Backhaul (Y/N)? O O
<1110>

<1200> Terms and Condition for Lifeline Customers

<2000>

<2005>

<3000>

<3005>

Price Cap Carriers, Proceed to Price Cap Additional Documentation Worksheet
lncluding Rote-of-Return Corriers ollilioted with Ptice Cop Locol Exchonge Corriers

(.heck to indicote cettilicotion)

( compl ete o tto ch ed work sh ee t)

Rate of Return Carriers, Proceed to ROR Additional Documentation Worksheet
(check to indicote certilcotion)

(com pl ete o ft o c h ed w orksheet )

1010/,t2013
Page I
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Recdved & lnsPeeted Page 12

391653<010> Studv Area Code

<015> SIUdVATCANAMC C]TY OF FATTII MUNTC

<020> P.ogram Yeaf 2014

<030> contact Name - Person USAC should contact resarding this data',udy christiansen

<035> Contact Number- Number of oerson identified in data line <o3o> 4o2-394-oo62

<039> contactEmailAddress-EmailAddressofpersonidentifiedindataline<O3O> jchristlansen@coneorElaconeult.lng.con

TO 8E COMPTETED BY THE REPORTING CARRIER, IF THE REPORTING CARRIER IS FITING ANNUAT REPORTING ON ITS OWN BEHALF:

Certification of officer as to the Accuracy of the Data Reported for the Annual Reporting for CAF or Ll Recipients

certiry that I am an offi€er ofthe reporting carricr; my responsibilities includ€ ensuring the accuracy of the annual reportint requirements for universal seruic€ supporl
'ecipients; and, to the best of my knowledge, the information rcported on this form and in any ,ttachments ls accurate.

{ame of Reoortinq Carrier:

;isnature of Authorized Officer: Oate

)rinted name of Authorized Officer:

iitle or position of Authorized Officer;

ieleohone number of Authorized Officer:

;tudv Area Code of Reoortins Carrier: Filins Due Date for this form:

Persons willfully making false itatementi on this fo.m @n b€ punished by fine or forfeiture under the Communlcation! Act of 1934, 47 U.5.C. 55 502, 503(b), or fne or imprisonment

underTitle 18 ofthe United States Code, 18 U,S,C. E 1001.

10t04t2013
Page 12



Received & lnsPected

OCT 24 Z(Ji3

FCC Mail Room

Page 13

<0L0> studyAreacode 391653

<020> Program Year 2074

<035> ContactTelephoneNumber-Numberofpersonidentifiedindataline<O3O> 402-398-0062

- Person USAC should contact .ludy Christiansen

<039> Contact Email Addres5 - Email Address of person identlfied in data line <O3o> J chrLs t.iilsen@consort iaconsul E ing . con

Certification of Officer to Authorize an Agent to File Annual Reports for CAF or Ll Recipients on Behalf of Reporting Carrier

ce,tlfythat(NarcofAsentEud]Lrb.i5r'*isauthorizedto3ubmnmeintormltm@
llso certify that I am an oflicer ofthe Eporting carrler; my rsponsibilities include ensurlng the accumcy of ttlo annual data rporing rquirments provided to the authorlzed
rgent; and, to the best of my knowledge, the reports and data provlded to the authorlzed agent is accuBte,

I

lame ofAuthorized Apent: Judy Christiansen

lameofReportingcarrier: CITY OF FAITH MUNfC

;isnatureofAuthorizedOfficer: CERTIPIED OMINE
,rinted name ofAuthorized officer: Debbie Brown

litle or position ofAuthorized Offlcer: Finance officer
ielephone number of Authorized Officer: 50 5' 967 -2267

;tudy Area Code of Reporting Carrier: 3 91 6 5 3

Date: 10/04/2013

Filins Due Date for this totmi L0 /as / 20

u.derTitle 18 ofthe United States Code, 18 U.S.C. 5 1001.

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE REPORTING CARRIE& IF AN AGENT 15 FILING ANNUAT REPORTS ON THE CARRIER'S BEHALF:

TO BE COMPTETED 8Y THE AUTHORIZED AGENT:

Certification of Agent Authorized to File Annual Reports for CAF or Il Recipients on Behalf of Reporting carrier

:he data repotted herein based on data provided by the teporting carrier; and, to the best of my knowledte, the infomation reported herein is accurate.

\,lamegfReponingcarrier: CITY OF FAITH MUNIC

,lameofAuthorizedAgentorEmployeeofAgent: Judy Christ.iansen

;ignature of,Authorized Agent or Employee ofA€entl CERTIFIED oNLINE
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City of Faith Municipal Telephone Company

Certification of Compliange_With Applicable Service Qualitv Standards and Cgnsumer
Protection Rulgs

Service Qualitv Stendafds

The Company:

. Provides voice grade access to the public switched network.
o Provides flat rated local exchange service with no additional charge to end users.
o Provides access to the emergency services provided by local government or other public safety

organizations, such as 911 and enhanced 911.
o Provides toll blocking and toll limitation services.
o Advertises the availability of its services and the charges using media of general distribution and

on its website.
o Maintains a business office providing customers with access to a customer service representative

either in person or via a local telephone call or toll-free telephone number during normal business
hours.

o Directs after hour calls to the Company's help desk.
o Directs trouble reports to the on+all technician.
. Tracks all service orders to ensure they are completed in a tirnely manner.
o Reviews its service connection and service interruption performance.
o Trains employees to:

o Answer all incoming calls promptly.
o Respond to all inquiries for information promptly and courteously.
o lnvestigate thoroughly all customer complaints and handle appropriately according to the

Company's guidelines for resolution of customer complaints.
o Be knowledgeable about products and service offerings so they can assist the customer

with selecting the best service option.
o Has a process for periodic inspection, testing and preventive maintenance of its equipment to

permit the rendering of safe, adequate and continuous service at alltimes.

Consumer Protection Rules

The Company has established operating procedures designed to facilitate compliance with applicable
consumer protection rules which include compliance with the Customer Proprietary Network lnformation
(CPNI) rules. The operating procedures include:

. Appointment of a compliance officer.
o A manual detailing the specific procedures for protecting consurner information.
. Employee training on an annual basis.
o A disciplinary process for improper use of consumer information.



City of Faith Municipal Telephone Company

Functionality in Emerqengv Situations

Back-Up Power

The Company has back-up power to ensure functionality without an external power source with
its battery backup system that is capable of providing power for a minimurn period of 8 hours.
The Company has a generator that automatically comes on whenever there is a loss of power.

Reroutlno of Traffic around Damaqed Facilities

The Company provides service in a single exchange. The Company's interexchange traffic is
on a soNET ring with diverse routing to prevent being isolated by a fiber cut.

Traffic Spikes

The Company is capable of managing traffic spikes resulting from ernergency situations as
required by Section 54.202(a)(2). The Company can take reasonable steps to reroute traffic or
add capacity to manage traffic spikes throughout its network as ernergency situations require.



City of Faith Municipal Telephone Company

Lifeline Terms and Gonflitlons

City of Faith Municipal Telephone Company (the "Company") offers Lifeline program-supported service to
qualified low-income residential consumers for one telephone line per eligible household. The Lifeline
program provides discounts to eligible low-income consumers to help them establish and maintain
telephone service. Lifeline assistance lowers the cost of basic, monthly local telephone service. Eligible
consumers can receive $9.25 per month in discounts. ln addition, the Federal Universal Service Charge
is not assessed to consumers participating in Lifeline. Toll Blocking prevents the placement of all long
distance calls for which a subscriber would be charged. Toll blocking is available to eligible consumers a1
no cost. Also, by choosing this option, consumers are usually not charged a deposit.

Lifgline Prosram Elioibilitv lnformation

Prooram Based Eliqibilitv

Consumers are eligible for Lifeline if they, one of their dependents or their household participate in one of
the following qualifying assistance programs:

Low-lncome Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)
Federal Public Housing Assistance (Section 8)
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP)
Medicaid
NationalSchool Lunch Program's Free Lunch Program
Supplemental Security lncome (SSl)
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF)

Lifeline applicants must present documentation demonstrating eligibility either through participation in one
of the qualifiTing federal assistance programs or through income-based means.

Acceptable documentation of program-based eligibility includes: current or prior year's statement of
benefits from a qualifying state, federal or Tribal program; notice letter of participation in a qualiffing state,
federal or Tribal program; program participation documents; or another official document'eviddncing the
consumer's participation in a qualifying state, federal or Tribal program.

lncome Based Ellqibilltv

ln addition, consumers are eligible for Lifeline if their household income is at or below 135% of the federal
poverty guidelines.

2013 Federal Poverty Guidelines - 135o/o

Household Size 48 Contiguous
States and D.C.

Alaska Hawaii

1 $15,512 $19.373 $17,861
2 $20,939 $26.163 $24,098
3 $26,366 $32,954 $30,335
4 $31,793 $39.744 $36,572
5 $s7.220 $46,535 s42.809
6 s42.647 $53.325 $4e,046
7 $48.O74 $60.1 16 $55.283
I $53,501 $66,906 $61.520
For each addltional
oerson. add

$5,427 $6,791 $6,237



Acceptable documentation of income eligibility inctudes: prior year's state, federal or Tribal tax retum;
current income statement from an employer or paycheik stu-b; social security statement of benefits;
Veterans Administration statement of benefiti; retiremenUpension siatement of benefitsi
unemploymenUworkmen's compensation statement of benefits; 

'federal or Tribal notice of letter
participating in General Assistance; or a divorce decree or child support award or other official document

Numbers of Minutes-of-use Provided as part of Lifeline proqram seryice

The Compaly's Voice Lifeline service includes unlimited local minutes-of-use within the tofl-free calling
area. The Company's Voice Lifeline Plan does not include any free minutes-of-use for toll. Toll is billed
at the standard toll rate depending on which interexchange canier the consumer subscribes to for toll
service' As part of the Lifeline service, Toll blocking is availible to eligibte consumers at no cost.

Rates

Subscribers may receive the Lifeline credit on any type or grade of local service, including bundled
services that are normally offered by the Company. Advertised rates do not include any applicible taxes
or surcharges.

Recertification of Lifeline Etiqibititv

Lifeline recipients are required-to recertify their eligibility annually. Failure to properly recertify a recipient's
co-ntinued eligibility for the Lifeline 

-program 
will result in termination of the dfetine recipibnt's monthly

Lifeline discount and de-enrollment from the Lifeline program.

Addltional Lifeline Proqram lnformation

The.Lifeline program is limited to one benefit per household, consisting of either wireline or wireless
service. A household. is defined, for purposes of the Lifeline program, as an individual or group of
individuals who live together at the same address and snar6 income and expenses. Lifeline is a
government benefit program, and consumers who willfully make f,alse statements in order to obtain the
benefit can be punished by fine or imprisonment or can be barred from the program.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR' S REPORT

City Council
City of Faith
Faith, South Dakota

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of governmental activities, the business-type activities, and

each major fund of the CITY OF FAITH (the City), Meade County, South Dakota, as of and forthe year ended

December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of
Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Gqvernmept AuditinL Staqdards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statem€nts. An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinions.

As described in Note l(c), these financial statements were prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which
is a comprehensive basis ofaccounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

In our opinion, the financial statements refened to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective

financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City as of
December 31,2011, and the respective changes in financial position thereof, for the year then ended in conformity
with the basis of accounting described in Note l(c).

In accordance with Governmenl Auditine St4ndard_s, we have also issued our report dated November 7, 2012, on our
consideration of the City's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of this report is to
describe the scope ofour testing ofinternal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results ofthat
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report is

an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditine Standaxds, and should be considered

in assessing the results ofour audits.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for Quality Control



REDACTED - FOR P]JBLIC INSPECTION
City Council
Page Two

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The

management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through l0 and budgetary information on pages 34 through 36 is

presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and is not a required part ofthe financial statements. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other

records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and

reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

e& ler
KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certifi ed Public Accountants

November 7,2012
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31,2011

This section of the City of Faith's (the City) annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the

City's financial performance during the year ended on December 31,2011. Please read it in conjunction with the

City's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The total revenues forthe City's governmental activities increased in 20ll from 2010 byI percent. The main

reason for the increase in revenues in 2011 was due to increased revenue from- and-
I of approximatelyl,offset by a decrease in- of approximatelyl.

The City's business-type activities charges for services increased by ! percent to 

-. 

The main factor

contributing to these results include the f Fund revenue increase of I due to E'

-, 

und u-. There was an increase inI,I, and! revenue

as rates were increased,

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists ofthree parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial

statements (including related notes), and required supplementary information. The basic financial statements include

two kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

r The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short'

term information about the City's overall financial status.

. The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City's
goverlment, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the govemment-wide financial statements.

oThe governmental funds financial statements tell how general government services like public
safety were financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending.

oProprietary funds financial statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about

the activities that the City operates like businesses. The City has six proprietary funds - the

I Fund,f Fund,f Fund,fFund,f Fund, anda
Fund.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and

provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary

information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3l,20lt

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting

The City has elected to present its financial statements on a modified cash basis of accounting. This modified cash
basis of accounting is a basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. Basis of accounting
is a reference to when financial events are recorded, such as the timing for recognizing revenues, expenses, and their
related assets and liabilities. Under the City's modified cash basis ofaccounting, revenues and expenses and related
assets axe recorded when they result from cash transactions, except for the recording of investments.

As a result of the use of this modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their related revenues, (such as

accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and liabilities and their related

expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and accrued
expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. Therefore, when reviewing the financial
information and discussion within this annual report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations resulting from
the use ofthe modified cash basis ofaccounting.

Government-wide Statements

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets - the

difference between the City's assets and liabilities - is one way to measure the City's financial health or position.

olncreases or decreases in the City's net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating, respectively.

oTo assess the overall health ofthe City, you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in the
City's property tax base and changes in the sales tax revenue base.

The government-wide financial statements of the City are reported in three categories:

oGovemmental Activities - This category includes most of the City's basic services, such as police, fire, public
works, parks department, and general administration. Sales taxes, charges for services, state and federal grants,

and interest earnings finance the majority ofthese activities.

oBusiness-Type Activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help cover the costs of certain services it
provides. The City'sf,I,I-I, andl are included here.

oComponent Units - The City does not have any component units.

Fund tr'inancial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds - not the

City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes. State law requires some ofthe funds. The City Council establishes other funds to
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the City is properly using certain taxes and grants.
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3t,20tt

ovERvrEw oF THD FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONCLUDED)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The City has two kinds of funds:

. Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are included in the governmental funds, which focus on
(l) how cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the year-
end balances available for spending. Consequently, the govemmental funds financial statements provide a
detailed short-term view which helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom
of the governmental funds financial statements, or on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or
differences) between them.

o Proprietary Funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both short-term and long-term financial
information. The City's proprietary funds are the same as its business-type activities, but provide more detail
and additional information, such as cash flows.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The City's combined net assets increased by t
f.(See Table A-l)

percent between the fiscal year 2010 and 20ll - increasing by

The Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources. This statement presents the assets and
liabilities in order of relative liquidity. The liabilities with average maturities greater than one year are reported in
two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year. The only long-term
liability of the City, a capital lease, has been reported in this manner on the Statement of Net Assets. The difference
between the City's assets and liabilities is its net assets.

PUBLIC
-5-
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets

The City's revenues totaled-, and the total cost of all programs and services was- for the year
ended December 31, 201 l. The City's expenses cover a range of services, including road maintenance, parks and
recreation services, and sewer system services. (See Table A-2).

Table A-l Summarized Statement of Net Assets for 201I and 2010

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
20tt 2010 20tt 2010 ?0tt 2oto

lurrentandOtherAssets$fIIM-II
SapitalAssets r r r r r 

-
Total Assets $----III

Surrent Liabilities
Lone-Term Debt

$ rt
I

I!IIITITI
I I I I I

Total Liabilities SIITIITII-II
Yet Assets:

Invested in Capital Assets,

NetofRelatedDebt $I 

- 

I r tI 

- 

rIUnrestricted r I 

- 

r 

- 

I
TotalNetAssets$EE--III

BeginningNetAssets--r--I
lncrease (Decrease)

inNetAssetsSI-IIIII-lI

Percentage ofChange
inNetAssetsfIIIII
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets (Continued)
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

Table A-2 and the narrative that follows consider the operations of the governmental and business-type activities.

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services

Capital Grants and Contributions
Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues

Taxes

Revenue State Sources

Grants and Contributions
not Program Specific

Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Miscellaneous

I I Tr I I
I T I
T I T

Table A-2
Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2:0tt 2010 20rt 20.10 20tt ?010

$IlI----
lttlll

I I I I I I

I I
I I

I I

I I I I
ITII
I I I I

Iotal Revenues I I 

- - - -
Expenses
General Government
Public Safety

Public Works
Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Conservation and Development
Debt Service

I
I
I

-

I
E

I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
t
T

I
I
I

r
T
I
I
I
Ir

I
I
I
T

I
I

t
I
I
T

!
!
I

I
I
I
I

I
I

I
I
I
I
T

T

I

-
I
I
I

I
I

I I
I I
I Ir r
I I
I I
I I
I T
I I
I I
I I

I T
I I

Total Expenses I T E E 

- 

E
Excess (Deficiency) Before Transfers

Transfers

Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets
-III I I

Il-r 

- 

r

I I I
I

IIEII$

Endins Net Assets $------
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DI SCUSSION AND ANALYSI S (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITYAS A WHOLE (CONCLUDED)

Governmental Activities

The City experienced a decrease in expenses in 201 l. I was I less due to theE
. Additionally, the City did not employee

Dispatchfortheservice'During20ll,theswimmingpool
was closed as the Council felt it was unsafe due to the proximity construction for the new school building. This

resulted in a decreased in approximatelyl. Under Conservation and Development, the City paid less in 201I
for the carnival byl. Also, the City's 201I donation to the school of I was paid in 2010 resulting in a
total ofI being donated in 2010 and none in 201 l.

The revenues increased in 20ll byl. The main factors are sales tax being higher in the amount off,
charges for services being higher in the amount of [t and grants being lower in the amount ofJ. Under

charges for services, ambulance revenue was higher byI, but of that increase,J was a grant from the

American Heart Association for a new monitor.

Business-Type Activities

The City's business-type activities charges for services increased by approximately I percent. I expense

increased I partly due to some remodeling completed in 2010 of I and none in 20ll' The !
revenue inc;rease resulted from increasedl fromI and additional construction work within and

near the City during 2011. I revenue was higher due to a rate increase andl expenses increasedl
due to a rate increase in; puichases for resale. frevenue was upl mainly due to a rate increase.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

The financial analysis of the City's funds mirror those highlighted in the analysis of governmental and business-type

activities presented above. The City's only governmental fund type is the General Fund. The City also maintains six
business type funds -I, I,I, I, I, and-.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the years, the City Council revised the City's budget several times. These amendments fall into

two categories:
oSupplemental appropriations for funds not funded during the normal budget session.

elncreases in appropriations to prevent budget ovetruns.

The general fund budget was decreased in 201 I due to the police budget not needing as much since the City does not

have dispatchers locally, but instead the City contracts with 

- 

Dispatch for a decrease in expense of
I Additionally, the City's 201I street project was less costly.
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONCLUDED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINI STRATION

By the end of 20 I I , the City had invested f in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings,
and various machinery and equipment. (See Table A-3).

LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31,2011, the City hadf in long-term debt (See Table A-4 below)

Table A-4
Outstanding Debt and Obligations

Governmental Activities
20tt 2010

Total Outstanding Debt and Obligations $

tal Acquisition Lease

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS BUDGETS AND RATES

One of the primary sources of revenue to the City is based on taxable retail sales in the community (Sales Tax). The
City has maintained a stable sales tax revenue from the prior years and has budgeted for consistent sales tax revenue
for the next year.

The City's adopted General Fund budget for next year will increase mainly due to a bigger street project, some
painting and repairs to a couple buildings and a possible new employee in Public Works.

The City expects business-type activities for 2013 to increase due to rate increases.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S F'INANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City of Faith's Finance Office, P.O. Box
368, Faith, SD 57626.

Table A-3
Capital Assets

(net ofdepreciation)

Govemmental Activities
20tt 2010

Business-Type Activities

tion Work in Progress

otal Caoita
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31,2011

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Inventory
Capital Assets:

Land and Construction Work in Progress

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities

FOR PUBLIC
-l l-

INSPECTION

Total

IT
I

I
T

I

II

-
I

I
I

I
I
I
I
I

Other Capital

$IIIT

-LIABILITIES:
Other Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities;

Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year

ITII I
rrI

III
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Unrestricted

I r I
I

-
E

E 

-

ITOTAL NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES
FORTHE YEARENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OII

Program

---Revenues---

Operating

Charges for Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions

Net (Expense) Revenue and

------Changes in Net Assets-----------"

Primary Govemment

Govemmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

General Govemment

Public Safety

Public Works

Health and Welfare

Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development

Interest on Lnng-Term Debt

Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:

I
I
I

-
I

-
Total Business-Type Activities

I I III I II
I T I I
! I I I
I I I I
I I I I

$II I
II
I I
I I
I I
I I I I I I
r I I r I I

- 

I I I I I

I I
I I

I I
I I
I I

IIIII
EIII

I I
I I

- 
I

I I
I I

I
I
I
T

I

I
I
T

T

I

I I

TotalPrimaryGovernment $r-l I r r r

General Revenues and Transfers:

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Sales Taxes

Gross Receipt Taxes

State Shared Revenues

G'rants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs

Unrestricted Investment Eamings

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfcrs

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - December 3l' 2010

Net Assets - December 31' 2011

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.

III
III
III
I I I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I I I

I
T

I

-

I
I

$,rrr-
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BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2011

ASSETS:
l0l Cash and Cash Equivalents
15l Savings Certificates - Investments
I l5 Accounts Receivable, Net

FOR PUBLIC
-13-

INSPECTION

General
Fund

$r
I

I
TOTAL ASSETS $I

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
216 Other Current Liabilities $I
Total Liabilities:

Fund Balances:
266.02 Assigned for Capital Replacements
266.01 Assigned for Next Year's Appropriations

I
I

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $I

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

RECONCILIATION OF'THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 3t,20tt

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Assets are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not included in the funds.

I

I

I
f"trt N"t es.tr - C mental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OII

General
Fund

Revenue:

313

314
3ls
320

334
33s.02
335.03

33s.04
335.08

338.01

338.99

341
342

343
346
347

348
349

Taees:

Sales Taxes

Gross Receipts Business Taxes

Amusement Taxes

Licenses and Permits

I nte r gov ernme nt al Reve nue :

State Grant
Motor Vehicle Commercial ProRate

I TaxReversion
Motor Vehicle Licensesf
Local Government Highway and Bridge Fund
County Road Tax
Other

Chargesfor Goods and Services:

General Government
Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Culture and Recreation
Ambulance
Cemetery
Other

Misce llaneous Revenue :

Investment Earnings
Rentals

Contributions and Donations From Private Sources

Other

$I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I

I
I

I
I
I
I
I

I

361
362
367

369
Total Revenue I



REDACTED - FOR pr6UBLtC tNSPECTION

CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI1

General
tr'und

Expenditures:
General Government:

Legislative
Executive
Elections
Financial Administration
Other

Public Safety:
Police
Fire

Public l{orks:
Highway and Streets
Airport
Cemeteries

Health and Weffare:
Health
Ambulance

Cuhure and Recreqtion:
Recreation
Parks

Swimming Pool
Library

C onserv ation and Developme nt :

Economic Development and Assistance
Promoting the City
Economic Oppornrnity

Debt Service

4tt
412
413

414
419

421

422

431

435

437

441

446

451

452
454
455

465

465.3

466
470
48s

I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

I
Out

Total E

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
391.01 Transfers In
391.04 Compensation for Loss or Damage To Capital Assets
5ll Transfers Out

I r

Fund Balance, December 31,2010
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CITY OF FAITH

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTTVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OII

Net Change in Fund Balances - Government Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of the assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital Asset Purchases Capitalized
Depreciation Expense

I

I
I

-
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement
ofNet Assets.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,



REDACTED. FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

CITY OF FAITH

BALANCE SHEET
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER3l,20ll

ASSETS:
Current Assets:
l0l Cash and Cash Equivalents
l5l Saving Certificates - Investments
I l5 Accounts Receivable
142 Inventory ofSupplies Purchased for Resale

-l 8-

I
Fund

I
Fund

I
Fund

II
I
I

I

III
I
I

I
I

I
I

Total Current Assets I

Noncurrent Assets:
l5 I Joint Venture Investment (Note 8)
Capital Assets:
160 Land
168 Construction in Progress

162 Buildings
164 Improvements Other Than Buildings
166 Machinery and Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation

I

I
I
I
t

I
I

!

I
I

I
I
I

T

I

I
I
I

I
I
I

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS II IT

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
216 Other Cunent Liabilities
220 Customer Deposits

I
I

II
I

IT
I

Total Current Liabilities

NET ASSETS:
253.1 Invested in Capital Assets

253.9 Unrestricted Net Assets
I

I
I
I

I
I

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LhBILITIES A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Fund Fund Fund Totals
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2OI1

I
Fund

I
Fund

I
Fund

Operating Revenue:
380 Charges for Goods and Services

380.5 Lottery Sales

330.2 State Grants

369 Miscellaneous

III
T

I

II
I
T

I

I
T

I
I

Total Operating Revenue f

Operating Expenses:
410 Personal Services
420 Other Current Expense
426.2 Materials (Cost of Goods Sold)
457 Depreciation

I
I
I

I

I
I
I
I

I
I

-
I

Total Operating Expenses I

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses):
361 InvestmentEarnings
391.4 Compensation for Damages to Capital Assets
454 Grants to Other Entities

t
I

I

I

I
t
I

I

I
!
I

I

Total Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)

-Income Before Transfers

5l I Transfers Out

I

-

I
I -I

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - December 31,2010

I
I

I
I

I
r

IET ASSETS - DECEMB

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Fund Fund Fund Totals
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REDACTED. FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Suppliers

-20-

I
Fund

I
tr'und

I
Fund

III IIr I

-

to

Net Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities I r I

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities:
Grants to Other Entities I

=,Ttgntf"f;=to=o,thllFundr. ==. 
- 

i 

-
Npt Cash Used in Noncapital Financing Activities I I I

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchases of Capital Assets
Compensation for Damages to Capital Assest

I
I

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capitat and Related
Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Interest Eamings I

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Investments

Cash and Investments, December 31r 2010 r I I
Cash and Investments, December 31,2011 I

-Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Inventories
Customer Deposits
Other Current Liabilities

I

I
I

I

I
I
I

I
I
I

lel Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities II II I

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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REDACTED.

CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION
-21-

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

As discussed further in Note (l) c., these financial statements are presented on a modified cash basis of accounting.
The modified cash basis ofaccounting differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP). GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements,

a. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity of the City of Faith (the City) consists of the primary government (which includes all of the
funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that make up the legal entity, plus those funds
for which the primary govemment has a fiduciary responsibility, even though those fiduciary funds may represent
organizations that do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the financial reporting entity); those organizations for
which the primary government is financially accountable; and other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the
financial reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

b. Basis of Presentation

Govemment-wiCe Financial Statgments:

The Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities display information about the reporting entity as a whole.
They include all funds of the reporting entity. The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type
activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-
exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for
goods or services.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each segment
of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable
to a particular function. Program reyenues include (a) charges paid by recipients of goods and services offered by
the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as
general reyenues.

Fund Fi{rpnclal Stptqments:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
constitute its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are organized into two
major categories: governmental and proprietary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and
proprietary categories.

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or it meets the following criteria:

l. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses ofthe individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least ten percent ofthe corresponding total for all funds ofthat category or type, and

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least ftve percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined,
or

3. Management has elected to classiff one or more govemmental or enterprise funds as major for consistency
in reporting from year to year, or because ofpublic interest in the fund's operations.
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CITYOF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,20I I

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements: (Continued)

The funds of the City financial reporting entity are described below:

9overnmental Fuqds:

General Fund - the general fund is the general
resources except those required to be accounted
major fund.

Proprietarv Funds:

operating fund ofthe City. It is used to account for all financial
for in another fund. The general fund is always considered to be a

Enterprise Funds - enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent ofthe governing body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination ofrevenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes.

Proprietary Funds include:

I Fund - financed primarily by thel; this fund accounts for construction and operation of
the-. This is a major fund,

f Fund - financed primarily by user charges; this fund accounts for the construction and operation of
theCityEandrelatedfacilities(sDCL9-47-l).Thisisamajorfund.

I Fund - financed primarily by user charges; this fund accounts for the construction and operation of
the City- and related facilities. This is amajorfund.

I Fund - financed primarily by user charges; this fund accounts for the construction and
operationoftheCityfandrelatedfacilities(SDCL9.48.2),Thisisamajorfund.

- 

Fund - financed primarily by user charges; this fund accounts for the construction and operation
of the Cityf and related facilities. This is a major fund.

- 

Fund - financed primarily by user charges; this fund accounts for the construction and
operation ofthe This is a major fund.

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe how transactions are recorded within the various financial statements.
Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINT]ED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Measurement Focus:

Gpvemme{rt-widg Financial Statements:

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both governmental and business-type
activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus, applied within the limitations of the
modified cash basis of accounting as defined below.

Fr{nd Finpnciel StatqFents:

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic resources
measurement focus is used, applied within the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting.

Basis of Accounting:

All financial statements are presented using the modified cash basis of accounting. The modified cash basis of
accounting involves the measurement of cash and cash equivalents and changes in cash and cash equivalents
resulting from cash receipt and disbursement transactions. Under the cash basis of accounting, the statement of
financial position reports only cash and cash equivalents. Under the modified cash basis ofaccounting, transactions
are recorded in the accounts when cash and/or cash equivalents are received or disbursed and assets and liabilities
are recognized to the extent that cash has been received or disbursed.

Acceptable modifications to the cash basis of accounting implemented by the City in these financial statements are:

L Recording ofcapital assets arising from cash transactions and depreciating those assets where appropriate.
2. Recording of long-term debt arising from cash transactions.
3. Recording both capital assets and related long-term debt used to finance the capital asset acquisition.
4. Recording inventory resulting from payment of cash to vendors.
5. Recording of investments arising from cash transactions.
6. Recording of customer's deposits arising from cash transactions.

As a result of the use of the modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their related revenues (such as

accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their
related expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and accrued
expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements.

If the City applied GAAP, the fund financial statem€nts for governmental funds would use the modified accrual
basis of accounting, while the government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements for proprietary
fund types would use the accrual basis of accounting.

The enterprise funds do not apply any FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989.
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CITYOF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINT]ED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

d. Interfund Transfers

The City transfers unrestricted revenues collected in the enterprise funds to the General Fund and other enterprise
funds to balance the budgets in those funds.

e. Capital Assets

Under the modified cash basis of accounting, capital assets are recorded when they result from cash transactions,
and are depreciated, when appropriate. The accounting treatment for property, plant, and equipment (capital assets)
depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether
they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

G.qye$ment-wide Financial State{nents:

Under the modified cash basis of accounting, capital assets are considered a cost of the program for which they were
acquired, for the amount paid in cash. Under the modified cash basis ofaccounting, capital assets arising from cash
transactions reported in the government-wide financial statements are accounted for as assets in the Statement ofNet
Assets. Allocations between programs are made, where necessary, to match the cost with the program that benefits
from the use ofthe capital assets.

All capital assets are valued at cost or estimated historical cost, if actual historical cost is not available.

Infrastructure assets used in general government operations, consisting of certain improvements other than
buildings, including roads, bridges, sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems, acquired prior to January l,
2004, were not required to be capitaliznd by the City. Infrastructure assets acquired since January l, 2004, ue
recorded at cost, and classified as "Improvements Other than Buildings."

Under the modified cash basis, depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets arising from cash transactions is
recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the
Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straightJine
method.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts),
depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the government-wide statements and
proprietary funds are as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method I Isefirl Life

Land
Construction Work in Progress
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment

Land is an inexhaustible capital asset and is not depreciated.

$I
$I
$I
$I
$I -

--

I.I
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2OII

(l) Summary of Signihcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e. Capital Assets (Continued)

Fu,nC tinancial Statements:

In the fund financial statements, capital assets arising from cash transactions acquired for use in govemmental fund
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund when paid for in cash. Capital
assets acquired for use in proprietary fund operations are accounted for in the same rnannei as in the government-
wide financial statements.

f. Long-Term Liabilities

The accounting treatment-of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-widi or fund financial
statements.

All long-term liabilities, arising from cash transactions, to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources
are reported as liabilities in 

-the 
respective columns on the government-wide frnancial statements. The long-term

liabilities primarily consist ofgeneral obligation bonds and capital acquisition leases.

Iaong'term liabilities arising from cash transactions of governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statements. Instead, the debt proceeds are reported as other financing sourtes and payments of principal
and^interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting for long-term aeUt Jf ttre proprietary fund is the sa*. in
the fund financial statements as it is in the government-wiie finanJial statements.

g. Revenue Received in Advance

Under the modified cash basis of accounting, cash may have been received in advance of the City,s providing a
good or service to a customer, resulting in defened revenue. There was no deferred revenue at Decemberj l,20ll.
h. Program Revenues

Program revenues derive directly from the program itselfor fiom parties other than the City's taxpayers or citizenry,
as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three categories, as follows:

l. Charges for services - These arise from charges to customers, applicants, or others who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by the
services.

2. Program-specific operating grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary non-
exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that are restricted for use in a
particular program.

3. Program-specific capital grants and contributions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary non-
exchange transactions with other govemments, organizations, or individuals that are restricted ior the
acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular program. There were no such revenues for 201 l.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(l) Summary of Sigrificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i. Proprietary Funds Revenue and Expense Classification

In the proprietary fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets, revenues and expenses
are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in the Statement of Cash Flows. That is,
transactions for which related cash flows are reported as capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing
activities, or investing activities are not reported as components ofoperating revenues or expenses.

j. Inventory

Inventory in the enterprisef fund, aoquired for resale, is valued at the lower ofcost or market on the first-in,
first-out basis.

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose offinancial reporting, cash and cash equivalents includes all unrestricted and restricted demand and
savings accounts and certificates of deposit with a term to maturity at date of acquisition of three months or less.

The City pools the cash resources of its funds for cash management purposes. The proprietary funds essentially
have access to the entire amount oftheir cash resources on demand. Accordingly, each proprietary fund's equity in
the cash management pool is considered to be cash and cash equivalents for the purpose ofthe Statement ofCash
Flows.

L Equity Classifications

Goyerqmqnt-ryide Financial $tatempnts:

Equity is classified as net assets and is displayed in three components, as follows:

l. Invested in capital assets arising from cash transactions, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets,
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (if applicable) and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use either by (a) extemal
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations ofother governments; or (b) law
tluough constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

3. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of restricted or invested in
capital assets, net ofrelated debt.

Fufrd Financi4l Slatements:

In accordance with Govemment Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which was implemented in the current year, the City classifies governmental
fund balance as follows:

1 Nonspendable * includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable
form or because of legal or contractual constraints.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting policies (Concluded)

L Equity Classifications (Continued)

Fun4 Fin?ncial Statements (Continued):

2' Restricted * includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes which are externally
imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enablin!
legislation.

3. Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that are internally
imposed by the govemment through formal action of the highest levei of decision making authority and
does not lapse at year-end.

4. Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are neither
considered reshicted or committed. Fund balance may be assigned by the iity Council, Mayor, or Finance
Officer.

5. Unassigned - includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified within
the above-mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental funds.

As of December 31, 201l, the City Council assigned I an[ for capital replacements for ambulances
and a well, respectively.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements.

The City uses restricted amounts first when both restricted and unrestricted net assets or fund balances are available
unless there are legal documents/co_ntracts that prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar-for-
dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use cor*1tt"d,'then assignid, anilastly un*rign"d-u.ounts of
unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

The City does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy.

(2) Deposits and Investments

Thc City follows the practice of aggregating the cash assets of various funds to maximize cash management
efficiency and returns. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by statutes. These restrictions
are summarized below:

Deposits - The Municipality's cash deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL 4-6A-1,
9-22-6,9-22'6.1 andg'22-6.2, and may be in the form of demand or timi deposits. eualified depositories are
required by SDCL 4-6A'3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their other assets, eligible collateral having a
value equal to at least 100 percent ofthe public deposit accounts which exceed deposit insirance such as the FDIC
and NCUA' In lieu of pledging eligible securities, a qualified public depository may furnish irrevocable standby
letters of credit issued by federal home loan banks accompaniia Uy written evidence of that bank,s public debt
rating which may not be less than "AA" or a qualified public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a
corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota.
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CITY OF FAITH

NQTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(2) Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments - In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits Municipality funds to be invested only in (a) securities of the United
States and securities guaranteed by the United States Government either directly or indirectly; or (b) repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) above; or in shares of an open-end, noJoad fund
administered by an investment company whose investments are in securities described in (aj above and repurchase
agreements described in (b) above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9 requires investments to be in the physical custody of the
political subdivision or may be deposited in a safekeeping account with any bank or trust rorpuny designated by the
political subdivision as its fiscal agent.

As ofDecember 31, 201 l, the City's cash and deposits consisted ofchecking and savings accounts, and certificates
of deposit. Saving Certificates - Investments classified in the financial statements consist entirely of certificates of
deposits whose term to maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months. All of these accounts are insured or
collateralized in the City's name.

State law allows income from deposits and investments to be credited to either the General Fund or the fund making
the investment. The City's policy is to credit all income from deposits and investments to the General Fund.
GAAP, on the other hand, requires income from deposits and investments to be reported in the fund whose assets
generated that income except where legal or contractual requirements require investment income to be credited to a
fund other than the one associated with the assets. Where the governing board has discretion to credit investment
income to a fund other than the fund that provided the resources for investment, a transfer to the designated fund is
reported. Accordingly, in the fund financial statements, interfund transfers of investment earnings are reported,
while in the government-wide financial statements, they have been eliminated, except for the net amounts
transferred between governmental activities and business-type activities.

Interest Rqte Risk: The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure to fair value losses from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk: State law limits eligible investments for the City as discussed above. The City has no investment
policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Custodial Credit Risk: This is the risk that in the event of a deposit failure, the City's deposits may not be returned
to it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 3i, 201l, none of the City's
deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The City's places no limits on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.

(3) Property Taxes

The City does not levy property taxes.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(4) Changes in Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets for the year ending December 31, 21ll, is as
follows:

Balance

t2l3t/2010 Additions Deletions
Balance

t2l3U20tt
G overnmental Activities :
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land
Construction Work in
Total Capital Assets. not

Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

inery and
Total Capital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings
lmprovements Other Than Buildings

II

I
I

II

I
T

r
I

I
T

Total Accumulated

* Construction in Progress at December 3l,2}ll is composed of engineering costs for a land acquisition, wild land
fence, and runway safety area grading project for the Faith Airport, which upon completion will total approximately
D. The City was granted aI federal grant for this project. Expenditures in excess of the Federal grant
will be paid with the General Fund's fund balance.

Depreciation expense for govemmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

Public Works
General Government
Public Safety

Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental

$ I
I
Ir
I

-$--I-

Total Governmental Activities Capital
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(4) Changes in Capital Assets (Continued)

A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets for the year ended December 31, 201I

Balance

t2l3u20t0 Additions Deletions
Bus ine ss-Type Activities :
Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land IT
Constuction in Progress ** I

is as follows:

Balance
t2t3y20tl

tt
I

tt
I

I
I

Total Caoital

Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

I
I I

I
I
I

I
I

Yu,.bil.?uJ,4Equipl"gnt= , f i i 
-

Total Capital Assets BeineDepreciated r I r 

-Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

I
I I

I
!
I

I
I

Yqclifrvanlrql&ment.. 
- 

r i 
-

TotalAccumulatedDepreciation 

- 

r r 

-Total Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets, being Depreciated, Net

** Construction in Progress at December 3l,20ll is composed of engineering costs for a broadband technology
opportunities project, which upon completion will total approximatelyl.The City was granted aI
federal grant for this project. Expenditures in excess of the Federal grani wiil be paid with the General funAt fund
balance.

Depreciation expense for business-type activities was charged to functions as follows:

Business-Type Activities:

I $ III

-I
II

-I
II
Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type T,E
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CITY OF F'AITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUf,D)
DECEMBER 3I,2OII

(5) Long-Term Debt

A summary of the changes in long-term debt for the years ending December 3 l, 201 l, is as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
I2l3l/2OlO Additions Deletions l2l3lt20ll One Year

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities :

capitali{cquisitionleasgs $ r I r r r I 

- 

r r
Tptal9oygrnmentalActivities I I I I I
Total Primary Government $-rtrrr-rr
The principal amount, above, was included in the appropriate classification of capital assets, and is being
depreciated over the estimated useful-life of the asset, The asset as of December 31, 20ll is f with

f in accumulated depreciation for a net book value ofl.

Debt payable at December 31,201l, is comprised of the following:

Capital Acquisition Lease
Capital Lease for recreation center that bears interest at! percent with

semi-annual payments of , matures January 2017 atwhich time the full
batance ts due. Ftnanc

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt outstanding as of December 31,2011, are as follows:

Capital
Acquisition Lease

,, Interest Principal
2012 $I II2013 r r2014 I I20ts r r2016 I I2017 r r

Interest cost paid and charged to interest expenso in the current period totaled!!.
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CITY OX'F'AITH

NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATtrMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2011

(6) Operating Leases

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the City began subleasing a portion of the recreation center to the Faith
School District. This is a fifteen year operating lease that requires annual lease payments of [. Sublease rental
income was I for the year ended December 31, 201 l. Future rental revenues expected under this lease are as
follows as of December 3 l, 201 I :

2012 $

2013
2014
2015
2016

2017-2018

r
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I
I

The City of Faith entered into af lease agreement with- on December 7,
2007, for host and remote switching services, with an optional 

- 

extension *ii'ich was extended after year
end. The lease requires minimum monthly charges of I plus variable fees based on service levels. Lease
payments werelfor the year ended December 31,2011. Future minimum lease payments are Ers follows as
of December 3 l, 201 I :

2012 $
2013
2014
2015

(7) Retirement Plan - South Dakota Retirement System

All employees, except for part-time employees, participate in the South Dakota R.etirement System (SDRS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system established to provide retirement benefits for
employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability,
and survivors' benefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after three years of credited service. Authority
for establishing, administering and amending plan provisions are found in South Dakota Codified Law 3-12. The
SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Pierre, SD 57501-1098 or by
calling (605) 7 7 3 -37 3 I .

General employees are required by state statute to contribute I percent of their salary to the plan, while public
safety and judicial employees contribute f and I percent, respectively. State statute also requires the
employer to contribute an amount equal to the employee's contribution. State statute also requires the employer to
make an additional contribution in the amount offpercent for any compensation exceeding the maximum taxable
amount for social security for general employees only. The City's share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were f I and I, respectively, equal to the
required contributions each year.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONCLUDED)
DECEMBER 31,2011

(8) Joint Ventures

The City participates in the South Dakota Network, Inc. (the Network), a network formed for the purpose of
receiving and delivering phone traffic for its members. For the year ended December 31, 201 l, the Ciry'; in;erest in
the voting and non-voting common stock is $I, which is recorded as an investment (using theiost method)
within thef fund. The stock will be main6ined by the City as long as it participates in thi Network.

Ownership in the Network consists oflentities, none of which have significant ownership percentages. The City
has less than ! percent ownership. Separate financial statements for this joint venture are-available from Soutir
Dakota Network, Inc., Sioux Falls, South Dakota.

At December 31,2011, this joint venture had total fund equity of 

- 

(unaudited), total liabiliries of
D (unaudited), and total assets of- (unaudited). -

(9) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended December 31,2011, the City
managed its risks as follows:

EmPlolree Health I*surance:

The City purchases health insurance for its employees fiom a commercial insurance carrier. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three years.

Liabilitv Ipsurance:

The City purchases property and liability insurance for risks related to torts; theft or damage to property; and errors
and omissions of public offrcials from a commercial insurance carrier. Settled claims resuliing fromthese risks have
not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three years.

Worker's Comnensation:

The City joined the South Dakota Municipal League Worker's Compensation Fund (the Fund), a public entity risk
pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local government
entities. The objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member organizations,
a program of worker's compensation coverage, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a
comprehensive loss control program. The City's responsibility is to initiate and maintain a iafety program to give
its employees safe and sanitary working conditions and to promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve
any worker's compensation claims. The City pays an annual premium to the Fund Pool to provide worker,s
compensation coverage for its employees. Coverage limits are set by state statute. The Pool puyt th. first Iof any claim per individual. The Pool has reinsurance, which covers up to statutory limits in u-dditio, to affi
combined employer liability limit of I per incident. The City does not carry additionat insurance to cover
claims in excess of the upper limit. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability
coverage during the past three years.

Upgmplovmenl Benefits:

The City has elected to be a noncontributing member of the Unemployment Compensation Fund established by state
law and managed by the State of South Dakota. As a result, the City retains ali risks for liabilities resulting from
claims for unemployment benefits. Claims filed and paid for unemployment benefits were Slduring the year
ended December 31, 2}ll.lt is not anticipated that any additional claims for unemployment benfrIs will be filed in
the next year.
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CITY OF FAITH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND. BUDGETARY BASIS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3t,20tt

Original
Budget

Actual -
Final Budgetary
Budget Basis Variance

Revenue:
Tatces:

313 Sales Taxes

314 Gross Receipts Business Taxes
3 15 Amusement Taxes
320 Licenses and Permits

I nte r gov e r nme ntal Rev enue :

331 Federal Grant
334 State Grant
335.02 Motor Vehicle Commercial Prorate
335.03 f TaxReversion
335.04 Motor Vehicle Licenses!
335.08 Local Government Highway and Bridge Fund
338.01 CountyRoad Taxf
338.02 County FIBR Taxf
338.99 Other

Chargesfor Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety
343 Highways and Streets
346 Culture and Recreation
347 Ambulance
348 Cemetery
349 Other

Misc e I lane ous Reve nu e :
361 Investment Earnings
362 Rentals
367 Contributions and Donations From private Sources

$I
I
I

I
I

I
Ir

I
I
I
Ir
Ir
I

I
I

Ir

T
I
I

I
I
I
Ir

I
I
Ir

I
I

I
t

I
I

I
I

-
I

I
I

Tr
I
I
I
I
I
T

I
r
I
I

I
I r
I

tr
I

I
I
I
I
Ir
I

I
I

I
I
Ir
I
I

I
I

I
I I I TITTII I I I
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CITY OF FAITH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND. BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OII

Original
Actual -

Final Budgetary

Expenditures:
General Government: .

4ll Legislative
411.5 Contingency

Amount Transferred
412 Executive
413 Elections
414 Financial Administration
419 Other

Public Safety:
421 Police
422 Fire

Public llorlu:
Highway and Streets
Airport
Cemeteries

Health and Welfare:
Health
Ambulance

Culture and Recreqtion:
451 Recreation
452 Parks
454 Swimming Pool
455 Library

431

435

437

441

446

I
I
I III
r
I
rII
II
IIIr

I
r

I
I

I
I
I

I
I
I
I
I
I

I
I
I r

I rII TI IIrI TI I
I TI T
I TI TI I
I TI I
I rI Ir II T

465

465.3

466

Conservation and Development :
Economic Development
Promoting the City
Economic Opporhrnity

Debt Service

II
I

III
rII

IrI4

Total

391.01 Transfers In
391.04 Compensation for Loss or Damage to Capital Assets

I
I

-
I

I I I I5l I Transfers Out

Fund Balance, December 31,2010

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 3I,2O1I

(1) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

l. At the first regular board meeting in September of each year, or within ten days thereafter, the governing
board introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for the ensuing fiscal year.

2. After adoption by the governing board, the operating budget is legally binding and actual disbursements for
each purpose cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except as indicated in item number 4.

3. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item may not exceed five
percent ofthe total municipal budget and may be transferred by resolution ofthe governing board to any
other budget category that is deemed insufficient during the year.

4. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state statute allows the
adoption of supplemental budgets.

5. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered by resolution ofthe governing board.

6. The City did not encumber any amounts at December 31, 201 l.

7. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the general
fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and debt service funds.

(2) GAAP Budgetary Accounting Basis Differences

The financial statements prepared in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting present capital outlay
expenditure information in a separate category of expenditures. Under the budgetary basis of accounting, capital
outlay expenditures are reported within the function to which they relate. For example, the purchase of a new fire
truck would be reported as a capital outlay expenditure on the Govemmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, however in the Budgetary Required Supplementary Information
Schedule, the purchase of a fire truck would be reported as an expenditure of the Public Safety/Fire Department
function of government, along with all other current Fire Department related expenditures.



REDACTED - FOR PUBLIC TNSPECTION

OT}MR REPORTS



REDACTED. FOR PUBLTC INSPECTION

& {*n1,ffi*ffi}sJHp,*r**I
810 Quincy Street

P.O. Box 3140, Rapid City, South Dakota 57209
Telephone (605) 342-5630. e-mail: ktllp@klllp.com

City Council
City of Faith
Faith, South Dakota

We have audited the modified cash basis financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the CITY oF FAITH (the City) as of and for the year ended December 3l,2dil,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated

-November 
7'2012. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards g"nrruity accepted in the

United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing our auditing procedures for the purpose ofexpresiing our opinions on the financial ,tatem"nts, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe City's internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not expross an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial
reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identifr all deficiencies in internal control ovir financial reporting thafmight bI
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance ilrut utt deficielncies,
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying
Auditor's Comments and Closing Conference, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internai control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing thiir assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the dificiencies described in the
accompanying Auditor's Comments and Closing Conference as 201l-l and2}ll-2to be material weaknesses.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for euality Control
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instance of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Governmerlt Auditing Standards.

Management's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Auditor's
Comments and Closing Conference. We did not audit management's responses and, accordingly, we express no

opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, City Council, management, and federal and

state granting agencies and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than those specified
parties. However, as required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-l l-l l, this report is a matter of public record and its

distribution is not limited.

e&-kr
KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

November 7,2012
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CITY OF FAITH

AUDITOR'S COMMENTS AND CLOSING CONFERENCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OII

A. Status of Prior Audit Findings and Recommendations

INSPECTION

Cunenl Yea,r

Resolved and Not Repeated

Substantially Repeated as 2011-l

Substantially Repeated as 20ll -2

Resolved and Not Repeated

Resolved and Not Repeated

Resolved and Not Repeated

Prior Year

2007-r

2007-2

2007-3

2009-6

2007-7

2010-l

Description

Internal Control Over Significant Accounts

Financial Statement Preparation

Segregation of Duties

Telephone Billing Rates

Budgetary Overdraft

Fund Balances
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CITY OF FAITH

AUDTTOR'S COMMENTS AND CLOSING CONF.ERENCE (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OII

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES

20 1 l:l FINDING: Finqncial Slateme[t Preparation

Condition/Cause: As in prior yearsi, we were requested to draft the audited financial statements and related footnote
disclosures as part of our regular audit services. Ultimately, it is management's responsibility to provide for the
preparation of the City's statements and footnotes, and the responsibility of the auditor to determine the fairness of
presentation of those statements. From a practical standpoint, we do both for the City at the same time in connection
with our audit. This is not unusual for us to do with municipalities of your size.

Criteria and Effect: This deficiency could result in a material misstatement to the financial statements that would not
have been prevented or detected by the City's management.

Recommendation: As in prior years, we have instructed management to review a draft of the auditor prepared
financials in detail for their accuracy; we have answered any questions they might have, and have encouiaged
research of any accounting guidance in connection with the adequacy and appropriateness of classification ind
disclosure in the City's statements. We are satisfied that the appropriate steps have been taken to provide the City
with the completed financial statements. It is the responsibility of management and those charged with governancl
to make the decision whether to accept the degree of risk associated with this condition beciuse of cost or other
considerations.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The City evaluates its risk associated with this condition on an annual basis. The
Finance Officer, Debbie Brown, is responsible for this corrective action plan.

20.11-2 F.INDNG: Segregation of Duties

Condition/Cause: The City has a general lack of segregation of duties in the finance office, more specifically:

a' All finance personnel have access to the general ledger, open mail, receive the unopened bank
statement, and mail the signed checks.
The Finance Officer and Deputy Finance Officer receive customer payments, have access to write-
off and adjust customer accounts, and the customer adjustments or write-off reports are not
reviewed. In addition, the Finance Officer prepares the revenue portion of the financial statements
given to the City Council for review. The Finance Offrcer is preparing a listing of adjustments,
but the listing is not currently being reviewed by someone other than herself.
There is lack of controls at the !. The ! Manager orders inventory, receives inventory, and
performs quarterly spot-check inventory counts. Additionally, there is not a process to accurately
account for all movement of inventory from thelstore to the!. During the current year,
the count documentation was reviewed by the Filance Officer forEsonableness and accuiacy.
Additionally, the Finance Officer is performing spot checks of inventory. We noted the year end
inventory listing as of December 3l,20ll did not match the general ledger by f . Margin
analysis on the f inventory, lsales and operating agreements was not perfornGd-!?riodically
until the end of20l l.
The! maintains a stack ofsigned checks (with one signature) on hand for larger lottery payouts.
The risk of misappropriation is mitigated by the Finance Offrcer's review of the bank statement,
including images of cancelled checks.

b.

d.
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CITY OF FAITH

AUDITOR'S COMMENTS AND CLOSING CONFERENCE (CONCLUDED)
FOR THE YDAR ENDED DECEMBER3l,2OIl

B. Findings - Financial Statement Audit (Continued)

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES (Continued)

2011-2, F[NDIN9i Seeregaliop of Duties (Cqn(inue4)

Criteria and Effecl Internal controls should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that all financial
transactions are reviewed and approved before payments are made and reports are generated. Controls also need to
be in place to ensure all revenue is processed and recorded correctly. A proper segiegation ofduties and functions
aslures adequate control over safeguarding of assets and the reliability of finan"ial records and reporting. The
effectiveness of the internal control system relies on enforcement by management.

Recommendation:

a. There is an overall lack of segregation of duties over the disbursement process due to the limited
number of accounting personnel, which is typical in a city of this siie. However, the risk of
misappropriation is mitigated by the Mayor reviewing the unopened bank statement.

b. The listing of account adjustments and write-offi from the accounting software should be
reviewed monthly by a City Council Member.

c' The Finance Officer should continue to review the periodic inventory count paperwork and
perform random count checks. Additionally, margin analysis (direct cosi ofsales as a percentage
of sales) should be performed at least monthly by the Finance Officer and reviewed 6r
reasonableness based on gross Tarqin percentages of f, 

- 

and operating
agreements' During the year, the Finance Officer began reco;dfiEmFEating agreement
activity in separate accounts to assist in analyzing gross margins, *e ,ecornrnenA lniJ process
continues.

d. Signed checks should not be maintained on hand, as it creates the potential for misappropriation of
cash. As noted above, the risk is mitigated by the Finance Officer's review of the bankitatement,
including images of cancelled checks.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The City attempts to maintain propor segregation of duties with the staff
available. The Finance Officer, Debbie Brov,rn, is responsible for this conictive icti6n plan.
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810 Quincy Street

P.O. Box 3140, Rapid City, South Dakota 57709
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

City Council
City of Faith
Faith, South Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
and each major fund of CITY OF FAITH (the City), Meade County, South Dakota, as of and for thi year endej
December 31,2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the iity,s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

ll{anagement's Responsibiligt for the Financisl Ststements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
the modified cash basis of accounting as described in Note l(c); this includes determining that the modified cash
basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the financial statemenls in the circumstances.
Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contol relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

A u ditor's R esp onsibilily
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits containedin Government Auditing Standards, issued bythe Comptroller General of the United
States' Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgmeirt, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or eror. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presJntation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity's internal contol. Accordingly, we express no srch opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies uied ana the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by managernent, as well as evaluiting the overall presentation ofthe financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Basislor Qualified opinions on Gwernnuntal Acfivities snd Generul Fund
We did not observe physical chip inventory at December 31,2012, stated at [. We were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about inventory quantities by other auditingffiedures.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for euality Control
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City Council
Page Two

Qualifrcd Opinions
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter discussed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph,

the financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the governmental activities and the General Fund as of December 31, 2012, and the changes in financial position
thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1(c).

Unmodifi,ed Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements refened to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the business-type activities and each major fund, other than the General Fund, for
City of Faith as of December 31,2012, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash

flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note
l(c).

Emphasis of Matter Regarding Basis olAccounting
We draw attention to Note I (c) of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial
statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect

to this matter.

Disclaimer of Opinion on Supplementary Informafion
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City's basic financial statements. The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison
information on pages 3 through 10 and 34 through 36, which are the responsibility of management are presented for
the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and

accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Require d by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Septembr 20,2013 on
our consideration of the City's internal conhol over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contoacts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose ofthat report
is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal confiol over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal confol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance wfih Government Auditing Stqndard.s in considering the
City's intemal control over financial reporting and compliance.

KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certifi ed Publ ic Accountants

September 20,2013
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31,2012

This section of the City of Faith's (the City) annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
City's financial performance during the year ended on December 31,)OtZ. Please read it in conjunction with the
City's financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The total revenues for the City's governmental activities decreased in2012 from 201I bv [. The main reasons
for this change were due to operating grants decreasing f and interest decreasing il Sales Taxes also
increased Uy il, showinglocal b-us]ness are smylng $eady.

The City's business-type activities charges for services increased bvI
contributing to these results include the! Fund revenue incr"uret

This annual report consists of three parts - management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements (including related notes), and supplementary information. The baiic financial staiements include two
kinds of statements that present different views of the City:

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and short-
term information about the City's overall financial status,

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the City,s
government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide financial statements.

oThe govemmental funds financial statements tell how general govemment services like public
safety were financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending.

oProprietary funds financial statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about
the activilies that the Q!Iy-9pgl41es like businesses. The ciry has I funds * the

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of supplementary information
that further explains and supports the information in the financial statemenis.
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3t,2012

ovERyIEW OF TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNUED)

Basis of Accounting

P: Cl? has elected to present its financial statements on a modified cash basis of accounting. This modified cash
basis ofaccounting is a basis ofaccounting other than generally accepted accounting principlei. Basis ofaccounting
is a reference towhen financial events are recorded, such as tfre timing for recognizing r.u"nurr, expenses, and theii
related assets and liabilities. Under the City's modified cash basis of accountin-g, reve}ues and expenses and related
assets are recorded when they result from cash transactions, except for the recording ofinvestments.

As a result ofthe use ofthis modified cash basis ofaccounting, certain assets and their related revenues, (such as
accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and liabilities and their related
expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goods or services received but not yet paid, and accrued
expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements. Thaefore, when riviewing the financial
information and discussion within this annual report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations iesulting from
the use of the modified cash basis of accounting.

Government-wide Statements

The two government-wi-de-statements report the City's net position and how it has changed. Net position - the
difference between the City's assets and liabilities - is one *ay to measure the City's financiil health or position.

olncreases or decreases in the City's net position is an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating respectivel y.

oTo assess the overall health ofthe City, you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in the
City's property tax base and changes in the sales tax revenue base.

The government-wide financial statements ofthe City are reported in three categories:

oBusiness-Type Activities - The
provides.

a fee to customers to cover the costs of certain services it
are included here,

.Component Units - The City does not have any component units.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City's most significant funds - not the
City as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specifiJ sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes. State law requires some of the firnds. The City Council establishes other funds to
control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the City is proierly using certain taxes and grants.
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CITY OF FAITH

MAI\AGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSTS (CONTTNUED)
DECEMBER 3t,2012

QVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONCLUDED)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

The City has two kinds of funds:

Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are included in the governmental funds, which focus on
(l) how cash and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash flow in and out md (2) the year-
end balances available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds financial statements provide a
detailed short-term view which helps determine whe*rer there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the City's progrnms. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the government-wide staternents, we provide additional information at the bottom
of the governmental funds financial statements, or on the subsequent page, that explains the relationship (or
differences) between them.

Proprietary Funds - Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds, like the govemment-wide statements, provide both short+erm and long+erm nnancial
information. The City's proprietary funds are the same as its business-type activities, but proride more detail
and additional information, such as cash flows.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WIIOLE

Net Position

The CiW's combined net.position increased bylpercent between the fiscal year 20ll and2012- increasing to
il roriE laulrrr-r I

The Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis reports all financial and capital resources. This statement
presents the assets and liabilities in order of relative liquidity. The liabilities with average maturities greater than one
year are reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due in more than one year.
The only long-term liability of the City, a capital lease, has been reported in this manner on the Statement oiNet
Position - Modified Cash Basis. The difference between the City's assets and liabilities is its net position.
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Table A'l Summarized Statement of Net Position - Modified Casn nasiifor ZO|Z ana ZOf f
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Current and Other Assets

Liabilities$I$I$I$I$I$

Net Position:
Net Investment in

capitalAssets$I$I$I$I$I$

Beginning Net Position

Increase (Decrease)

in Net Position

Percentage ofChange
in Net Position

Changes in Net Position

ffi '3'Jffi!i1"i,!f"B:G,.T,1*:J:*;T.ft l5;Xffi :,i,X;ffi '.xfi'mf ;_L:x;
recreation services, and sewer system services. (See Table A-2).
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND AI\{ALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBDR 3I,2OI2

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Figure A-1: Sources of Revenu e for 2012

Figure A-2: Functional Expenses for 2012
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CITY OFFAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTIIYUED)

Changes in Net Position (Continued)

Table A-2 and the narrative that follows consider the operations of the governmental and business-type activities.

Table A-2
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2012 20tt 2012 20tt 2012 20tt

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
General Revenues

Taxes

Revenue State Sources

'I'I$rF$rr$t$t
IIJ III

Grants and Contributions
not Program Specific

Unrestricted Investment Eamings
Miscellaneous

Excess (Defi ciency) Before Transfers IIIIT
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
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CITY OF FAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTIIYUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONCLUDED)

Governmental Activities

had an increase of

ffiffiftli"Hd#T'il*ffiffifffi,!
aI.

more rnfp*"nuseo rbr

l, as new mandgement didn't

Business-Type Activities

F'INANCIAL ANALYSIS OF TIIE CITY'S F'I]NDS

business type funds

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

take over in thea{sU/ear until Oct66ffil20ll, so the20li *rr?'l
approximately f,mainly due to morefbeing used in2012.
due to cost increase.

The financial analysis ofthe City's funds mirror those highlighted in the analysis of govemmental and business-type

l1],"1:1"_rlT?",3_"b . rheCityalsomaintainsl

,"ffi,-,T;:"rl;ls,1ffi



i{1'ffi tt-ffJ1,:H,il'"Ji'[1H:f;,fl:l.,*'ttk
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CITY OFFAITH

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONCLUDED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

CAPITAL ASSET ADMINISTRATION

LONG.TERMDEBT

As of December 3l,2|lz,the city naa f in rong-term debt (see Table A-4 below)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARS BUDGETS AND RATES

The City expects business-type activities for 20 I 3 to increase due to rate increases.

CONTACTING TIIE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City's finances and to demonstate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City of Fuith'r Finance Office, p.O. Box
368, Faith, SD 57626.

Table A-3
Capital Assets

(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
2012 20tt 2012 2ott

Work in Progress

Table A-4
Outstanding Debt and Obligations

Governmental Activities

otal Outstandins Debt and
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
DECEMBER 31,2012

Goverumental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Other Cat
ASSETSTOT,

ASSETS:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Inventory
Capital Assets:

Land and Construction Work in Progress

LIABILITIES:
Other Cunent Liabilities
Non-Cunent Liabilities:

Due Within One Year
in More Than One Year

TOTAL LIA

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSTION

TE-TE'
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.

NET POSTION:
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CITY OFFAITH

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES. MODIX'IED CASH BASIS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012

Program

-----Revenues---------
Operating Capitat

Charges for Grants and Grants and

Elpenses Services Contibutions Conkibutions

Net @xpense) Revenue and

-------Changes in Net Position------
Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
FunctionsPrograms
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General Government

Public Safety

Public Works

Health and Welfare

Culture and Recreation

Conservation and Development

Interest on long-Term Debt
Total Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:

ItI
Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

General Revenues and Transfers:
General Revenues:

Taxes:

Sales Taxes

Gross Receipt Taxes

State Shared Revenues

Grants and Contributions not Restricted to Specific Programs
Unrestricted Investment Eamings

Miscellaneous Revenue

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position- December 3l,20ll

Net Position - December 31, 2012

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.

$IITTIITII

II
I
I
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CITY OFPAITH

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

INSPECTION

General
tr'und

ASSETS:
l0l
151

ll5
t42

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Savings Certificates - Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE:
Liabilities:
216 Other Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities:

Fund Balance:
263.01 Nonspendable

Total tr'und

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OFFAITH

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
DECEMBER 31,2012

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Net Position are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not included in the funds.

r
I

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUND. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

General
Fund

Revenue:

313

314
315

320

334
335.02

335.03
335.04
33s.08
338.01

338.99

I
I
I

341
342

343
346
347
348

349

Total Revenue

361

362
367
369

Tqxes:

Sales Taxes

Gross Receipts Business Ta:<es

Amusement Taxes
Licenses and Permits

Inte r gov e rnme nt al Rev e nue :
State Grant
Motor Vehicle Commercial ProRate

I TaxReversion
Motor Vehicle Licenses !
Local Government Highway and Bridge Fund
County Road Tax
Other

Chargesfor Goods and Services:
General Govemment
Public Safety
Highways and Streets
Culture and Recreation
Ambulance
Cemetery

Other
Miscellaneous Revenue :

Investment Eamings
Rentals

Contributions and Donations From Private Sources
Other
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)
GOVERNMENTAL FUND. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

General
Fund

I
I
r
J
I

465

465.3

466
470

485

Expenditures:
General Goverrunent:

Legislative
Executive
Elections
Financial Administration
Other

Public Safety:
Police
Fire

Public Worl<s:

Highway and Streets
Airport
Cemeteries

Health and Welfare:
Health
Ambulance

Culture and Recreation :

Recreation
Parks

Swimming Pool
Library

C onse rvat ion and Deve lopme nl :

Economic Development and Assistance
Promoting the City
Economic Opportunity

Debt Service
ital

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Transfers In

ion for Loss or
Total Other Fina Sources

tal Assets

4ll
412
413

4t4
419

421

422

431

435

437

441

446

451
452

454
455

Total

390.3

391.01

391.04

Other X'inancing Sources:

Fund Balance, December 3l,20ll

f,'und

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OFFAITH

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCE TO THE GOYERNMENT.WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Fund

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities are different because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the Statement of Activities the cost of the assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital Asset Purchases Capitalized

In the Statement of Activities, the gains and losses on disposal of capital
assets are reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds
from the disposal ofcapital assets are reflected, regardless ofwhether a
gain or loss is realized.

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement
of Net Position.

-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
DECEMBER 31,20t2

ASSETS:
Current Assets:

l0l Cash and Cash Equivalents
15 I Saving Certificates - Investments
I l5 Accounts Receivable

Purchased for Resale
Total Current

Noncurrent Assets:
15l Joint Venture Investment (Note 8)
Capital Assets:
160 Land
162 Buildings
164 Improvements Other Than Buildings
166 Machinery and Equipment

Less: Accumulated
Total Noncurrent Assets

I
Fund

I
Fund

I
Fund

LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
216 Other Current Liabilities
220 Customer Deposits
Total Current Liabilities

NET POSTION:
253.1 Net Investment in Capital Assets
253.9 Unresticted Net Assets
Total Net

TT-TT-
The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSTION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

Operating Revenue:
380 Charges for Goods and Services
380.5 Sales

Total Revenue

Operating Expenses:
410 Personal Services
420 Other Current Expense
426.2 Materials (Cost of Goods Sold)
457

Total

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenue:

I
Fund

I
Fund

I
Fund

361 Investment Earni

Income Before Transfers and Capital Grants

Change in Net Position

Net Position - December 3 1, 201 I

TT-rr-
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

I
I

I
I

I
I

330.2 Capital Grants
5l I Transfers Out
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CITY OFFAITH

STATEMENTOF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS. MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FORTHE YEARENDED DECEMBER 31,2012

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Suppliers
to

Net Cash Flows Provided Activities

Cash Flows From Noncapital tr'inancing Activities:
Transfers to Other Funds

I
Fund

I
Fund

I
Fund

Net Cash Used in N

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital Grants Received
Purchases of Assets

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

in Cash and Investments

Cash and Investments, December 3l,20ll

l$TTT-
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Inventories
Customer Deposits
Other Current Liabilities

Net Cash Flows Provided

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,

I
I

I
I

I
I
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III

Totals
I

Fund

-

Fund
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

As discussed further in Note (l)c, these financial statements are presented on a modified cash basis of accounting.
The modified cash basis of accounting differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ;f
America (GAAP). GAAP includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements.

a. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity of the City of Faith (the City) consists of the primary government (which includes all of the
funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departrnents, and offices that ma[e up the legal entity, plus those funds
for which the primary government has a fiduciary responsibility, even though those fiduciary fund-s may represent
organizations that do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the financial reporting entity); thore o.gunirations for
which the primary government is financially accountable; and other organizations 6r which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the
financial reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

b. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis and Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis display
information about the reporting entity as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity. The statemints
distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities-generally are financed
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-typJactivities are financed
in whole or in part by fees charged to extemal parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Activities - Modified Cash Basis presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each segment of the business-type activities of the City and for each function of ttri City's
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and,
therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) chargei paid by recipients oi
goods and services offered by the programs and (b) grants and confiibutions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements ofa particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues,
including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financiql State{nents;

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be a
separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set ofself-balancing accounts that
constitute its assets, liabilities, firnd equity, revenues, and expenditureVexpenses. Funds *" org*ir"d into two
major categories: governmental and proprietary. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmmtal and
proprietary categories.

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund ofthe City or it meets the following criteria:

Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditureVexpenses of the individual governmental or mterprise
fund are at least ten percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and
Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditureVexpenses of the individual governmental or enterprise
fund are at least five percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and enterprise funds combined,
or
Management has elected to classifu one or more governmental or enterprise funds as major for consistency
in reporting from year to year, or because of public interest in the fund's operations.

l.

)
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CMY OFF'AITH

NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTrr\ttrED)
DECEMBER 3t,2012

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

b. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Fina4cial Statements: (Continued)

The funds ofthe City financial reporting entity are described below:

Governmental Funds:

General Fund-the general fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all financial
resourc€s except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund is always considered to be a
major fund.

Proprietarv Funds:

Erterprise Funds - enterprise funds are used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (ixpenses, including
depreciation) ofproviding goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or r"couo"d
primarily through user charges; or (b) whue the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other purposes.

Proprietary Funds include:

ta 
.-, - tr-:"fli;',Tf#"j:l 

ff;:," 
off ; this tund accounts for construction and operation of

tlffi liiffi ff l,tff ?t$s,TiiTf 'fr:,i:ffi r'#rionandoperationof

t, i5iiflrljffiT:,,*H ffi[T-fii$::H;?"JJ:s 
ror the construction and operation or

;H, il:t* ffi ;:X":liHHi#i'($t ffitil:,ffi" i5 ;fi :lH?:'"

Hlilry;ffi TllSJ;::ffi :r-#i,Ti:*xi":"ffi:l"fortheconstructionandoperation

accounts for the constuction and
the City . This is a major fund.

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus is a term used to describe how transactions are recorded within the various financial statements.
Basis of accounting refers to lr,hen revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts and
reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus.
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CITY OFFAITH

NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

c. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Measurement Focus:

Ggvgrnment-wide Financial Statemeirts:

In the govemment-wide Stateme,nt ofNet Position and Statement of Activities, both governmental and business-type
activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus, applied within the limitations of the
modified cash basis of accounting as defined below.

Fund Fifrancial Statements :

In the fund financial statements, the current financial resources measurement focus or the economic resources
measurement focus is used, applied within the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting.

Basis of Accounting:

All financial statements are presented using the modified cash basis of accounting. The modified cash basis of
accounting involves the measurement of cash and cash equivalents and changes in cash and cash equivalents
resulting from cash receipt and disbursement transactions. Under the cash basis of accounting, the statement of
financial position reports only cash and cash equivalents. Under the modified cash basis ofaccounting, tansactions
are recorded in the accounts when cash and/or cash equivalents are received or disbursed and assets and liabilities
are recognized to the extent that cash has been received or disbursed.

Acceptable modifications to the cash basis of accounting implemented by the City in these financial statements are:

l. Recording ofcapital assets arising from cash transactions and depreciating those assets where appropriate.
2. Recording oflong-term debt arising from cash fansactions.
3. Recording both capital assets and related long-term debt used to finance the capital asset acquisition.
4. Recording inventory resulting from payment of cash to vendors.
5. Recording of investments arising from cash tansactions.
6. Recording of customer's deposits arising from cash tansactions.
7. Recording checks retumed as non-sufficient firnds as accounts receivable

As a result of the use of the modified cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their related revenues (such as
accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and certain liabilities and their
related expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goo{s or services received but not yet paid, and accrued
expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in these financial statements.

If the City applied GAAP, the fund financial statements for governmental funds would use the modified accrual
basis of accounting, while the government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements for proprietary
fund types would use the accrual basis of accounting.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINATTCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(l) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

d. Interfund Transfers

The City transfers unresficted revenues collected in the enterprise funds to the General Fund and other enterprise
funds to balance the budgets in those funds.

e. Capital Assets

Under the modified cash basis ofaccounting, capital assets are recorded when they result from cash transactions,
and are depreciated when appropriate. The accounting treatment for property, plant, and equipment (capital assets)
depends on uilrether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether
they are reported in the govemment-wide or fund financial statements.

Govprnment-wide Finangial Stateryents:

Under the modified cash basis of accounting, capital assets are considered a cost ofthe program for which they were
acquired, for the amount paid in cash.

Allocations between programs are made, where necessary, to match the cost with the program that benefits from the
use ofthe capital assets.

All capital assets axe valued at cost or estimated historical cost, ifactual historical cost is not available.

Infrastructure assets used in general govemment operations, consisting of certain improvements other than
buildings, including roads, bridges, sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems, acquired prior to January l,
2004, were not required to be capitalized by the City. Infrastucture assets acquired since January l, 2004, are
recorded at cost, and classified as "Improvements Other than Buildings."

Under the modified cash basis, depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets arising from cash tansactions is
recorded as an allocated expense in the Stateme,nt of Activities - Modified Cash Basis, with accumulated
depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position - Modified Cash Basis. Depreciation has been provided over
the estimated useful lives using ttre straight-line method.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset accounts),
depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the govemment-wide statements and
proprietary funds are as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Usetul Life

Land
Constuction Work in Progress
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment

Land is an inexhaustible capital asset and is not depreciated.

$
$

$

$
$ II
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

e. Capital Assets (Continued)

Fund Fir.rancial State.ments:

In the fund financial statements, capital assets arising from cash transactions acquired for use in governmental fund
operations are accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund when paid for in cash. Capital
assets acquired for use in proprietary fund operations are a@ounted for in the same manner as in the government-
wide financial statements.

f. Long-Term Liabilities

The accounting treatment of long-term liabilities depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund
operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial
statements.

All long-term liabilities, arising from cash fiansactions, to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources
are reported as liabilities in the respective columns on the government-wide financial statements. The long-term
I iabilities consist of capital acquisition leases.

Long-term liabilities arising from cash tansactions of governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statements. Instead, the debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payments ofprincipal
and interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting for long-term debt ofthe proprietary fund is the same in
the fund financial statements as it is in the government-wide financial statements.

g. Revenue Received in Advance

Under the modified cash basis of accounting, cash may have been received in advance of the City's providing a
good or service to a customer, resulting in deferred revenue. There was no defened revenue at December 31,2012.

h. Program Revenues

Program revenues derive directly fiom the program itself or from parties other than the City's taxpayers or citizenry,
as a whole. Program revenues are classified into three categories, as follows:

L Charges for services - These arise from charges to customers, applicants, or others who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from the goods, services, or privileges provided, or are otherwise directly affected by the
services.

2. Program-specific operating grants and contibutions - These arise fiom mandatory and voluntary non-
exchange fransactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that are restricted for use in a
particular program.

3. Program-specific capital grants and confibutions - These arise from mandatory and voluntary non-
exchange transactions with other governments, organizations, or individuals that are restricted for the
acquisition of capital assets for use in a particular program.
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CITY OF'FAITH

NOTES TO FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNIUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i. Proprietary Funds Revenue and Expense Classification

In the proprietary fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position - Modified Cash
Basis, revenues and expenses are classified in a manner consistent with how they are classified in the Statement of
Cash Flows - Modified Cash Basis. That is, transactions for which related cash flows are reported as capital and
related financing activities, noncapital financing activities, or investing activities are not reported as components of
operating revenues or expenses.

j. Inventory

Inventory in the enterprise ! fund, acquired for resale, is valued at the lower of cost or market on the weighted
average cost basis. Inventoiy in the general fund for chip inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market on the
weighted average cost basis.

k. Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose offinancial reporting, cash and cash equivalents includes all unresficted and restricted demand and
savings accounts and certificates of deposit with a term to maturity at date of acquisition ofthree months or less.

The City pools the cash resources of its funds for cash management purposes. The proprietary funds essentially
have access to the entire amount of their cash resources on demand. Accordingly, each proprietary fund's equity in
the cash management pool is considered to be cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the Statement of Cash
Flows - Modified Cash Basis.

l. Equity Classilications

Govprnment-wide Fina{rcial Statements:

Equity is classified as net position and is displayed in three components, as follows:

l. Net Investment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets, including resfiicted capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation (ifapplicable) and reduced by the outstanding balances ofany bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attibutable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets.

Restricted Net Position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use either by (a) extemal
groups such as creditors, grantors, confiibutors, or laws and regulations of other governments; or (b) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unresfricted Net Position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of restricted or invested in
capital assets, net ofrelated debt.

Frl+d Financial Statements :

The City classifies govemmental fund balance as follows:

l. Nonspendable - includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because it is not in spendable
form or because oflegal or contractual constraints.

2.

3,
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Concluded)

l. Equity Classifications (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (Continued):

2. Restricted - includes fund balance amormts that are constrained for specific purposes which are extemally
imposed by providers, such as creditors or amounts constrained due to constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

3. Committed - includes fund balance amounts that are constained for specific purposes that are intemally
imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of decision making authority and
does not lapse at year-end.

4. Assigned - includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are neither
considered restricted or committed. Fund balance may be assigrred by the City Council, Mayor, or Finance
Officer.

5. Unassigned - includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been classified within
the abov+mentioned categories and negative fund balances in other governmental flrnds.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in ttre government-wide financial statements.

The City uses restricted amounts first when both restricted and unresticted net position or fund balances are
available unless there are legal documentVconhacts that prohibit doing tJris, such as a grant agreement requiring
dollar-for-dollar spending. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned and lastly unassigned
amounts of unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made.

The City does not have a formal minimum fund balance policy.

(2) Deposits and Investments

The City follows the practice of aggregating the cash asets of various funds to maximize cash management
efficiency and retums. Various restrictions on deposits and investments are imposed by statutes. These restrictions
are summarized below:

Deposits - The Municipality's cash deposits are made in qualified public depositories as defined by SDCL 4-6A-1,
9-22'6, 9-22-6.1 and 9-22-6.2, and may be in the form of demand or time deposits. Qualified depositories are
required by SDCL 4-6A-3 to maintain at all times, segregated from their other assets, eligible collateral having a
value equal to at least 100 percent ofthe public deposit accounts which exceed deposit insurance such as the FDIC
and NCUA. In lieu of pledging eligible securities, a qualified public depository may fumish irrevocable standby
letters of credit issued by federal home loan banks accompanied by written evidence of that bank's public debt
rating which may not be less than "AA" or a qualified public depository may furnish a corporate surety bond of a
corporation authorized to do business in South Dakota.
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CTTY OFFAITH

NOTES TO FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (CONTrr{UED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(2) Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Investments - In general, SDCL 4-5-6 permits Municipality funds to be invested only in (a) securities of the United
States and securities guaranteed by the United States Govemment either directly or indirectly; or (b) repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by securities described in (a) above; or in shares of an open-end, no-load fund
administered by an investment company whose investments are in securities described in (a) above and repurchase
agreements described in (b) above. Also, SDCL 4-5-9 requires investments to be in the physical custody of the
political subdivision or may be deposited in a safekeeping account with any bank or trust company designated by the
political subdivision as its fiscal agent.

As of December 31, 2012,the City's cash and deposits consisted of checking and savings accounts, and certificates
of deposit. Saving Certificates - Investments classified in the financial statements consist entirely of certificates of
deposits whose term to maturity at date of acquisition exceeds three months. All of these accounts are insured or
collateralized in the City's name.

State law allows income from deposits and investments to be credited to either the General Fund or the fund making
the investment. The City's policy is to credit all income from deposits and investments to the General Fund.
GAAP, on the other hand, requires income from deposits and investments to be reported in the fund rryhose assets
generated that income except where legal or contractual requirements require investment income to be credited to a
fund other than the one associated with the assets. Where the governing board has discretion to credit investment
income to a fund other than the fund that provided the resources for investment, a transfer to the designated fund is
reported. Accordingly, in the fund financial statements, interfund transfers of investment earnings are reported,
while in the government-wide financial statements, they have been eliminated, except for the net amounts
transferred between governmental activities and business-type activities.

Interest Rate Risk: The City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means
of managing its exposure to fair value losses from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk: State law limits eligible investments for the City as discussed above. The City has no investment
policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Custodial Credit Risk: This is the risk that in the event of a deposit failure, the City's deposits may not be retumed
to it. The City does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of December 31,2012, none of the City's
deposits were exposed to custodial creditrisk.

Concentration of Credit Rist The City's places no limits on the amount that may be invested in any one issuer.

(3) Property Taxes

The City does not levy property taxes.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINAITCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTTNTJED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

(4) Changes in Capital Assets

A summary of changes in governmental activities capital assets for the year ending December 31, 2012, is as
follows:

Balance
t2/3u20tt Additions

Transfers/ Balance
Deletions l2Bln0n

Gove r nme ntal Act iv it ie s :

Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land
Construction Work in
Total Caoi not

Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

and

Total I Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Machinerv and Eoui
Total Accumulated tion

Total Governmental Activities Capital
Assets, being Dqrreciated, Net I r I I

T--rrTrr-r-
* Construction in Progress at December 31, 2012 is composed of engineering costs for a land acquisition, wild land
fence, and runway safety area grading project for the Faith Airport, which upon completion will total approximately

f The City was granted u f federal grant forthis project. Expenditures in excess ofthe Federal grant
will be paid with the General Fund's fund balance.

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

Public Works
General Govemment
Public Safety

Health and Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31,2012

(4) Changes in Capital Assets (Continued)

A summary of changes in business-type activities capital assets for the year ended December 31, 20l2is as follows:

Balance Transfers/ Balance
l2l3ll20l I Additions Deletions l2l3ll20l2

Business-Type A ctivities :

Capital Assets, not being Depreciated:
Land
Consfuction in
Total Caoital Assets. not

Capital Assets, being Depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

Total Canital Assets

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

inerv and Eoui
Total Accumulated

Total Business-Type Activities Capital
Assets. being Depreciated. Net I I

Tr-T-l---rT:
Depreciation expense for business-type activities was charged to functions as follows:

Expense - Business-Type

I
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NOTES TO FINAI\ICIAL STATEMENTS (CONTII\ruED)
DECEMBER 3t,2012

(5) Long-Term Debt

A summary ofthe changes in long-term debt for the years ending December 31,2012, is as follows:

Balance

l2/3ll20l I Additions
Balance Due Within

Deletions 1213112012 One Year
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

Activities

The principal amount, above, was included in the appropriate classification of capital assets, and is being
deoreciated over the estimated useful-life of the asset. The asset as of December 31, 2012 is f *ittr
f in accumulated depreciation for a net uoot 

"uiu" 
oi-*fl!.

Debt payable at December 31,2012, is comprised of the following:

Capital Acquisition Lease
Capital Lease for communityrcenter that bears interest at! percent with

semi-annual payments of
balance is due. Financed

matures January 2017 at which time the full
the General Fund.

The annual requirements to amortize long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2012, are as follows:

Capital
Acquisition Lease

Interest

Interest cost paid and charged to interest expense in the current period totaled f

2013
2014
20ts
2016
2017
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(6) Operating Leases

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the City began subleasing a portion of the community cBnter to the Faith
School District. This is uI year operating leaie thit requires *irui l"ut" payments orf . Sublease rental
income *ut f for ffiar ended December 31,2012. Future rental revenues expected'iil?lEi this lease are as
follows as of December 31,2012:

2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

The City of Faith entered into af-lear lease-agreement with

December-3l

on December 7,
2Q07,forhostandremoteswitching-services,withanoptional@dedduring20l2.
The legl3guires minimum .ontt ty charges of f , ptus v?Iable fees based on service levels. Lease payments

2013
2014
2015

(7) Retirement Plan - South Dakota Retirement System

All employees, except for part-time employees, participate in the South Dakota Retirement System (SDRS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer public employee retirernent system established to provide retirement benefits for
employees of the State of South Dakota and its political subdivisions. The SDRS provides retirement, disability,
and survivors' benefits. The right to receive retirement benefits vests after! years of credited service. Authority
for establishing, administering and amending plan provisions are found inTouth Dakota Codified Law 3-12. The
SDRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to the SDRS, P.O. Box 1098, Piene, SD 57501-1098 or by
calling (605) 7 7 3-37 3l .

General employees are required by state statute to contribute ! percent of their salary to the plan, while public
safety and judicial employees contribute I *a ! n"r6nt, respectively. State statute also requires the
employer to contribute an amount equal to the employee's contibution. State statute also requires the ernployer to
make an additional contibution in the amount of! percent for any compensation exceeding the maximum taxable
amount for social security for general employees only. The City's share of contributions to the SDRS for the fiscal
years ended December 31,2012,2011, and 2010 were f, f -df, respectively, equal to the
required conhibutions each year.
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DECEMBER 31,2012

(8) Joint Ventures

The City participates in the South Dakota Network, Inc. (the Network), a network formed for the purpose of
receiving and delivering phone faffic for its members. For the year ended December 31,2012, the City's interest in

l[:,H'iil9ff'ff:: frTTe'$ii';i,,"il,:xil'1il'dff"#ilt:fi,THi"i#Jlf',ffi$il::f"**)
Ownership in the Network consists of! entities, none of which have significant ownership perc€ntages. The City
has less than lPercent ownership. SEparate financial statements for ttris joint venture are'availabli fiom Soutir
Dakota Network, Inc., Sioux Falls, South Dakota.

ffi ffi$tf f .lfgl?,::['#ryffi'J,::'fl orf (unaudited)'totarriab,itie'orf

(9) Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. During the year ended December 31, 2012, the City
managed its risks as follows:

Employee Health Insurance:

The City purchases health insurance for its employees from a commercial insurance carrier. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three years.

Liabilitv Insruance:

The City purchases property and liability insurance for risks related to torts; theft or damage to property; and errors
and omissions of public officials from a commercial insurance carrier. Settled claims resulting from these risks have
not exceeded the liability coverage during the past three years.

Worker's Compensation :

The City joined the South Dakota Municipal League Worker's Compensation Fund (the Fund), a public entity risk
pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for South Dakota local government
entities. The objective of the Fund is to formulate, develop, and administer, on behalf of the member organizations,
a program of worker's compensation coverage, to obtain lower costs for that coverage, and to develop a
comprehensive loss confiol program. The City's responsibility is to initiate and maintain a safety program to give
its employees safe and sanitary working conditions and to promptly report to and cooperate with the Fund to resolve
any worker's compensation claims. The City pays an annual premium to the Fund Pool to provide worker's
compensation coverage for its employees. Coverage limits are set by state statute. The Pool pays the nrrt f
of any claim per individual. The Pool has reinsurance, which covers up to statutory limits in addition to a iEfinrr-te
combined employer liability limit of f per incident. The Citydoes not carry additional insurance to cover
claims in excess of the upper limit,--SettlEl-claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded the liability
coverage during the past three years.

Unemploylnent Benefits:

The City has elected to be a nonconhibuting member of the Unemployment Compensation Fund established by state
law and managed by the State of South Dakota. As a result, the City retains all risks for liabilities resulting from
claims for unemployment benefits. Claims filed and paid for unemployment benefits were fduring thi year
ended December 3 l, 2012. It is not anticipated that any additional claims for unemployrnent benEfifs will be filed in
the next year.
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CITY OF FAITH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012

Revenue:
Tqxes:

313 Sales Taxes

314 Gross Receipts Business Taxes

315 Amusement Taxes

320 Licenses and Permits
Inlergovernme ntal Rev enue :

331 Federal Grant
334 State Grant
335.02 Motor Vehicle Commercial Prorate

335.03 I TaxReversion
335.04 tvtotor Vehicle Licenses!
335.08 Local Government Highway and Bridge Fund

33131 ::xtBH$trI
338.99 Other

Charges for Goods and Services:
341 General Government
342 Public Safety

343 Highways and Sheets

346 Culture and Recreation
347 Ambulance
348 Cemetery

349 Other
Misc e llane ous Revenue :

Investment Earnings
Rentals

Contributions and Donations From Private Sources
Other

-34-

Actual -
Budgetary

Basis Variance
Original
Budeet

I
I

*

I

I
I
I

I
I
T

I
I
T

Final
Budset

361

362
367
369
Total Revenue
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CITY OF FAITH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (CONTINUED)
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3t,2012

Original
Budeet

I
I

,I
I
I

I
I
I
JI

I
II
II

I
I
I
I
I

431

43s
437

441

446

465

465.3

466
470

390.3

391.0 r

391.04

I I

Final
Budeet

Actual -
Budgetary

Basis Variance
Expenditures:

Generql Government:
4ll Legislative
412 Executive
413 Elections
414 Financial Administration
419 Other

Public Safety:
421 Police
422 Fire

Public llorlrs:
Highway and Streets
Airport
Cemeteries

Health and Welfare:
Health
Ambulance

Culture and Recreqtion:
451 Recreation
452 Parks

454 Swimming Pool
455 Library

Conservation and Development :

Economic Development
Promoting the City
Economic Opportunity

Debt Service
Total

Proceeds From Sale of Capital Assets

Transfers In
for Loss or

Total Other Financins Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance I I
Fund Balance, December 3l,20ll

T-TTTL:
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FAITH

NOTES TO SI]PPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

(l) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

l. At the first regular board meeting in September of each year, or within ten days thereafter, the goveming
board introduces the annual appropriation ordinance for the ensuing fiscal year.

2. After adoption by the goveming board, the operating budget is legally binding and actual disbursements for
each purpose cannot exceed the amounts budgeted, except as indicated in item number 4.

3. A line item for contingencies may be included in the annual budget. Such a line item may not exceed five
percent ofthe total municipal budget and may be transfened by resolution ofthe governing board to any
other budget category that is deemed insufficient during the year.

4. If it is determined during the year that sufficient amounts have not been budgeted, state statute allows the
adoption of supplemental budgets.

5. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end unless encumbered by resolution ofthe goveming board.

6. The City did not encumber any amounts at December 31,2012.

7. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the general
fund, special revenue funds, capital projects funds, and debt service funds.

(2) GAAP Budgetary Accounting Basis Differences

The financial statements prepared in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting present capital outlay
expenditure information in a separate category of expendihres. Under the budgetary basis of accounting, capital
outlay expenditures are reported within the function to which they relate. For example, the purchase of a new fire
huck would be reported as a capital outlay expenditure on the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Modified Cash Basis, however in the Budgetary Required
Supplementary Information Schedule, the purchase of a fire truck would be reported as an expenditure of the Public
SafetyiFire Department function of government, along with all other current Fire Department related expenditures.
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&[*qt*sffilrmme*kr
810 Quincy Street

P.O. Box 3140, Rapid City, South Dakota 57709
Telephone (605) 342-5630 . e-mail : k tllo@ktl lb. com

IN.DEPENQEM AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVERFINANCIALREPORTING AND
ON COMPUANCE ANDOTI{ERMATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANgE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City Council
City of Faith
Faith, South Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standard.s issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund ofthe CITY OF FAITH (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31,2012,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated September 20,2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements we considered the City's internal contol over
financial reporting (internal contol) as a basis to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing opinions on the effectiveness of the City's intemal contol. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identifr all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
and therefore, material weaknesses or sigrificant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
described in the accompanying Auditor's Comments and Closing Conference, we identified certain deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deJiciency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a contol does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A mqterial weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and conected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the
accompanying Auditor's Comments and Closing Conference as20l2-l and20l2-2 to be material weaknesses.

A sigrrificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal confiol that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanylng Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs as20l2-3 to be a significant
deficiency.

Members of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and AICPA Division of Firms for Quality Control
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material
misstatement we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement arnounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported urdq Gwernment Auditing Standard,s and which is
described in the accompanying Auditor's Comments and Closing Conference as20l2-3.

City's Response to Findings

The City's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Auditor's Comments
and Closing Conference. The City's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

Purpose of Report

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the City's intemal control or on compliance.
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose. However, as required by South Dakota Codified Law 4-l l-l l, the report is a matter of public record
and its distibution is not limited.

e&-kr
KETEL THORSTENSON, LLP
Certifi ed Public Accountants

September 20,2013



REDACTED. FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION
-39-

CITY OF FAITII

ATJDITOR'S COMMENTS AND CLOSING CONTERENCE
FOR THE YEARENDED DECEMBER3l,2012

A. Status of Prior Audit Findings and Recommendations

Prior Year

201 l-l

20tt-2

Qescription

Financial Statement Preparation

Segregation of Duties

Cqnent Ye?r

Substantial ly Repeated as 20 12- |

Substantially Repeated as 2012-2
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CITY OFFAITH

AUDTTOR'S COMMENTS AND CLOSING CONFERENCE (CONTTNUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI2

B. Current Year Audit Findings and Recommendations

MATERHLWEAKI\IESSES

2012-l FINDING: Financial Statement Preparation and Year End Adjustnents

Condition and Cause: As in prior years, we were requested to draft the audited financial statements and related
footnote disclosures as part of our regular audit services. During this process, we proposed a material audit
adjustment to reclassify inventory from expense. LJltimately, it is management's responslUitity to provide for the
preparation of the City's statements and footnotes, and the responsibility of the auditor to determine the faimess of
presentation ofthose statements. From a practical standpoint, we do both for the City at the same time in connection
with our audit. This is not unusual for us to do with municipalities of your size.

Criteria and Effect: Adjustments noted above would not have been identified as a result of the City,s existing
intemal controls. These deficiencies could result in material misstatements to the financial statements that would noi
haye been prevented or detected by the City's management.

Recommendation.' We recommend management review expense accounts for inventory adjustment at year end. As
in prim years, we have instructed management to review a draft of the auditor prepared financials in d'etait for their
accuracy; we have answered any questions they might have, and have encouraged research of any accounting
guidance in connection with the adequacy and appropriateness of classification and disclosure in the City,i
sktements. We are satisfied that the appropriate steps have been taken to provide the City with the completed
financial statements. It is the responsibility of management and those charged with gov"-un"" to make the detision
whether to accept the degree ofrisk associated with this condition because ofcost or other considerations.

Response/Corrective Action.Plan: The City will review expenses at year end and provide the auditors with a listing
of inventory. The City evaluates its risk associated with this condition on an annual basis. The Finance Officer]
Debbie Brown, is responsible for this corrective action plan.

2012-2 FINDIN9: Segreeation qf Duties

Condition and Cause: The City has a general lack of segregation of duties in the finance office, more specifically:

a. All finance personnel have access to the general ledger, open mail, receive unopened bank
statements, and mail the signed checks.
The Finance Officer and Deputy Finance Officer receive customer payments, have access to write-
off and adjust customer accounts, and the customer adjustments or write-off reports are not
reviewed. In addition, the Finance Officer prepares the revenue portion of the financial statements
given to the City Council for review. The Finance Officer is preparing a listing of adjustments,
but the listing is not currently being reviewed by someone other than herself.
There is lack of controls at the I. fh" I Manage. orders inventory, receives inventory, and
performs quarterly spot-check in-ventory coEts. Additionally, there is not a process to accurately
account for all movement of inventory from m"I storeto ttre!. Durin,e the cunent yeai.
the count documentation-was reviewed !1the Fiiffie Officer for-reasonableness and accuracy.
Margin analysis on the ! inventory, ! sales and operating agreements was not performid
periodically throughout the year.
fh"f *uintuinJu shck of signed checks (with one signature) on hand for larger lottery payouts.
The risk of misappropriation is mitigated by the Finance Officer's review of the bank statemen!
including images of cancelled checks.
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CITY OF FAITH

ATJDmOR'S COMMENTS AND CLOSING CONFERENCE (CONCLLIDED)
FOR TITE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

B. Current Year Audit Findings and Recommendations (Continued)

MATERIAL WEAKNESSES (Contin ued)

2012-2 FIN,DNQ: Seprqealion of Duties (.Continue4)

Criteria and Effect: Internal contols should be in place to provide reasonable assurance that all financial
transactions are reviewed and approved before payments are made and reports are ge,nerated. Confols also need to
be in place to ensure all revenue is processed and recorded correctly. A proper segregation ofduties and functions
assures adequate control over safeguarding of assets and the reliability of financial records and reporting. The
effectiveness of the intemal control system relies on enforcement by management.

Recommendations:

a. The overall lack of segregation of duties over the disbursement process is due to the limited
number of accounting personnel, which is typical in a city of this size. However, the risk of
misappropriation is mitigated by the Mayor reviewing the unopened bank statement.

b. The listing of account adjustments and write-offs from the accounting software should be

reviewed monthly by a City Council Member.
c. The Finance Officer should continue to review the periodic inventory count paperwork and

perform random count checks. Additionally, margin analysis (direct cost ofsales as a percentage
of sales) should be performed at least monttrly by the Finance Officer and reviewed for
reasonableness based on gross margin percentages of I, 

- 

and operating
agreements. The results should be reviewed with a City Coundil membei.

d. Sigred checks should not be maintained on hand, as it creates the potential for misappropriation of
cash. As noted above, the risk is mitigated by the Finance Officer's review of the bank statement,
including images of cancelled checks.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: The City attempts to maintain proper segregation of duties with the staff
available. The Finance Officer, Debbie Brown, is responsible for this corrective action plan.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

20 I 2-3 FINDING: Apprjval of Disbursements

Condition and Cause:

a. We noted during our review of disbursements that two checks were written that had only one
siglature, whereas two are required.

b. We noted during our review of disbursements one invoice was paid without Council approval;
however the bid was approved by the city council.

Criteria and Effect: Signature on disbursements and council approval of claims are required per SDCL 9-23-2 and
SDCL 9-23-3.

Recommendations:

a. The City will review disbursements prior to being mailed for two signatures.
b. The City will review the claims for council approval prior to the council meeting for completeness.

Response/Corrective Action Plan: Whoever mails the checks will ensure two signatures are present prior to mailing.
Two people will compare the actual vouchers to the claims list before the list is approved at the Council meeting.
The Finance Officer, Debbie Brown, is responsible for this corrective action plan.


